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3d more competition, more players, more uncertainty for utilities. And there's no reason to suspect that i

same trend will not transform the electric pow justry as well. Then, the proverbial shake-out will begin

If small municipal utilities like TMLP expect to

reman competitive in this new world of po
2

delivery, three things seem essential technology to our best advantage. We have to keep

the cost of puL And we have to dedicate ourselves to a level of guality that

comes only when people work t

| invite to review our work in 1994 from these vantage points. | am confident that you will

agree that TMLP is becoming well-prepared for this new, competitive world of power deliver

Joseph Medeiios: Commissioner : /

Jabn Martyniak: Chairman
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Mark Seekell Instrument Technician
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connection to an interstate pipeline is an opportunity to reduce our
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Jim lrving: Senior Research Analyst

PARTICIPATIVE MANAGEMENT
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Auditor’'s Letter

Municipal Light Commission of the City of Taunton

Boston, Massachusetts

Fehruary 24, 1995




Balance Sheets

Assets D¢ b 1994
Utility Plant - At Cost
Plant in service $91.447 840
sccumulated depreciat note Al 56,046,338
Net utility plant in service 35,401,502
vestment eabrook (notes A7 a 3,189,676
t not 6,431,926
45,023,104

12,547 801
2,891,221

Other Assets

anan
286,124
ree bit té 530,432

Current Assets
te £ 3.644 67
jey ! ! 346,761

3,273,919
451,320
1,848,482
261,433
8,826,586
§71,416,740

Retained Earnings and Liabilities

Retained Earnings

$16.837,000
32,434
16,869,434
26,777 454
43,646,888

Long-Term Debt (note E) 15,476,862

Current Liabilities
! { 2,430,151
4,301,356
364,414
840,000

3,087,851

550,819

554,907

153,335

f 10,157

Total current liabilities 12,282,990

§71.416,740




Statements of Earnings

Operating revenues (note A1)

$20,149 485

14,061,642

2,750,653

1,695,950

38,657,730

@f operating 224,284
Tota!l operating revenues 38.882.014
Operating expenses
juctior 20,359,073
2,726,964
1,374,869
4,700,143
pre Tl e A 3,876,795
Nuclear expense 212,88/
Total operating expenses 33,2507
Earnings from operations 5,631,283

Other expense (income)
! j 1,317,094

(276,044)
(112,763)

Total other expense 92¢.287
s before § pay , 4,702,996
Net Earnings 5_2;”1412,996

Statements of Retained Earnings

Years ended December 31, 1994 and 1993

N st
N

Balance at December 31, 1994 $16,837,000




Statements of Cash Flows

Cash flows from operating activities
Net earnings

Net cash provided by operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities

[ X
Net cash used in investing activities
Cash flows trom financing activities

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year
Cash and cash equivaients at end of year is reflected
on the balance sheets as follows

Supplemental Disclosure of Cash Flow Information

§ 2,342,996

3,876,795
(3,354)
(18.579)

(44,636)
78,083
(63,484)
86,199
(148.815)
(23.261)
373,392
531,918
2,087,580
55,761
239156
31,541)
9.338.21

(5,776,631)

2,500,000
(269.816)
(3,546 447)

$ (775,000)
5.016,784
7,855 688

$12,872472

$ 9,227,800
3,644 671
$12,872.472

§ 1,341,958




Statements

Note A - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Depreciation

Pension Plan

Iinventory

Sick Leave Trust Fund

Custome: Credits

Investment in Seabrook

Cash Egquivalents

Vacation

10 Reclassifications

Note B - Cash and Certificates of Deposit

Cash and centificates of deposit deposited with the City of Taunton
consists of the following st December 31

Cash and certificetes of deposit at December 31, is reflected as follows

1994
$12.309.232

910.000

3.320.000
$16.539,233

1994

$ B.696 95(
3,850,851

3 684 61
346761
$16,539.233




Nates to Finencial Statements

Note C - Investment in Seabrook

Note D - Lightwaves

Note £ - Long-Yerm Debnt

36,862
16.316.862
840 000

Aggregote maturities of long-term debt at December 31, 1994, are as follows

Note F - Contribution in Lieu of Taxes

Note 6 - Commitments and Contingencies

Interconnection Agreement




Notes to Financial Stetements

Note G - Commitments and Contingencies (cont )
Wydro-Quebec Agreement

The following represents the components of the Plant's recorded pension expense




Notes to Financial Statements

Note | - Coal-Fired Electric Generating Facility

Note J - Delerred Maintenance

Note K - Post Employment Benefits

20

Note L - Contingencies







' !” Taunion Municipal Lighting Plant 55 Weir Street Taunton, MA 02780
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND
REPORT OF INDEPENDENT
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS
TAUNTON MUNICIPAL LIGHTING PLANT
December 31, 1994 and 1993



REPORT OF INDEPENDENT CERTIFIE
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SHEETS
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OF CASH FLOWS

TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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RATING EXPENSES




98 North Washington Street
Boston, MA 02114-1913
617 7237900

FAX 617 7233640

Grant Thornton &

aaNT THORNTON LLP  Accountants and

Report of Independent Certified Public Accountant gMenaement Consutants
The U.S. Member Fum of
Grant Thornton International

Municipal Light Commission
of the City of Taunton
Taunton, Massachusetts

We have audited the accompanying balance sheets of the
Taunton Municipal Lighting Plant (a department of the City of
Taunton) as of December 31, 1994 and 1993, and the related
statements of earnings, retained earnings, and cash flows for the
years then ended. These financial statements are the
responsibility of the Plant’s management. Our responsibility is to
express an opinion on these financial statements based on our
audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with generally
accepted auditing standards. Those standards require that we plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An
audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the
amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also
includes assessing the accounting principles used ana significant
estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
financial statement presentation. We believe our audits provide a
reasonable basis for our opinion.

As discussed in note H to the financial statements,
certain disclosures required by the Governmental Accounting
Standards Board relating to pensions have been omitted.

In our opinion, except for the omission of certain
pension plan disclosures required by the Governmental Accounting
Standards Board, the financial statements referred to in the first
paragraph above present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of the Taunton Municipal Lighting Plant as of
December 31, 1994 and 1993, and the results of its operations and
its cash flows for the years then ended in conformity with
generally accepted accounting principles.

As discussed in note A of notes to the financial
statements, the Plant changed its method of accounting for vacation

pay during 1994.
)'/j itP

Boston, Massachusetts
February 24, 1995
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Taunton Municipal Lighting Plant

STATEMENTS OF EARNINGS

Years ended December 31,

Operating revenues (note Al)
Sales of electricity
Commercial and industrial
Residential
Sales for resale (note G)
Municipal

Other operating revenues
Total operating revenues

Operating expenses
Power production
Transmission and distribution
Customer accounting
Administrative and general
(notes A3, A5 and H)
Depreciation and amortization (note A2)
Nuclear expense

Total operating expenses
Earnings from operations
Other expense (income)

Interest expense

Other expense

Interest income

Other income (note G)
Total other expense

Net earnings before provision
for payment in lieu of taxes

Provision for payment in lieu of taxes
(note F)

NET EARNINGS

1993

$20,149,485
14,061,642
2,750,653

—4.695,950
38,657,730
—=224,284

38,882,014

20,359,073
2,726,964
1,374,869

4,700,143
3,876,795
—212,887

33,250,731
5,631,283

1,317,094

(276,044)
—1112,763)

928,287
4,702,996

2,360,000
S fud82,000

$20,570,402
13,865,978
2,607,432

—3.892,932
38,939,747
—2362,401

39,302,198

20,642,646
2,830,378
1,399,784

5,441,016
3,840,534
—203,282

34,357,640
4,944,558

1,359,329

2,805
(443,508)
—f{158,3¢61)

— 160,265
4,184,293

2,360,000
teB28.223

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these statements.
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Taunton Municipal Lighting Plant
STATEMENTS OF RETAINED EARNINGS

Years ended December 31, 1994 and 1993

Appropriated
—Retained Earnings =~ Unappropriated
Loan Construction Retained

Repayment __ _Repayment ___Earnings
Balance at December 31,

1992 $15,347,000 $32,434 $24,577,502
Prior period adjustment

(note A9) —1477,337)
Balance at December 31,

1992 (as restated) 24,100,165
Transfer for bond repayment 715,000 (715,000)
Net earnings P —1.824,293
Balance at December 31,

1993 16,062,000 32,434 25,209,458
Transfer for bond repayment 775,000 (775,000)
Net earnings A 2,342,996
Balance at December 31,

1994 $16,837,000 $32.433 $28.777.424

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these statements.

6




Taunton Municipal Lighting Plant

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Years ended December 31,

Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash
Equivalents

Cash flows from operating activities:
Net earnings
Adjustments to reconcile net earnings to
net cash and cash equivalents provided
by operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization
Amortization of bond premium

Equity in losses of Seabrook investment

Change in assets and liabilities:

(Increase) decrease in customer
deposit funds

Decrease in accounts receivable

Increase in due from retirement trust

Decrease (increase) in inventory

(Increase) decrease in prepaid
expenses

Increase in Lightwaves

Decrease in deferred debits

Increase in accounts payable

Increase (decrease) in customer
credits

Increase in customer deposits

Increase in accrued sick leave and
vacation

liabilities

Net cash provided by operating
activities

Cash flows from investing activities:
Net additions to utility plant
Investment in certificate of deposit -

depreciation fund
Proceeds from maturing certificate of
deposits - depreciation fund
Increase in Sick Leave Trust Fund

Net cash used in investing
activities

(Decrease) increase in other accrued

1994 1993
$ 2,342,996 §$ 1,824,293
3,876,795 3,840,534
(3,354) (3,354)
(18,579) (12,614)
(44,636) 9,922
78,093 206,504
(63,484) (387,836)
86,199 (31,935)
(148,815) 3,775
(23,261) (67,549)
373,392 373,392
531,919 10,892
2,087,550 (466,033)
55,761 5,475
239,156 407,018
—i31,541) ___ 37,501
2,338,231 5,749,980
(5,776,631) (4,450,888)
’ (5,820,000)

2,500,000

—1269,816) __(207,088)
(3.546.,447) (10,477,976)



Taunton Municipal Lighting Plant
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS - CONTINUED
Years ended December 31,

1994 1993
Cash flows from financing activities:
Payment of long-term debt $__(775,000) $__(715,000)
Net increase (decrease) in cash
and cash equivalents 5,016,784 (5,442,991)

Cash and cash eguivalents at beginning
of year 2.8505,.688 13,298,679

Cesh and cash equivalents at end of year $1l2. 872,472 S$_71.855,.688

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year
is reflected on the balance sheets as

follows:
Depreciation funds $ 9,227,801 §$ 6,016,705
Cash _2.644.6071 -2.838,983

$12.872.472 $_2.855.688

Supplemental Disclosure of Cash Flow Information:

Cash paid during the year for interest $ 1,341,958 $ 1,381,971

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these statements.
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Taunton Municipal Lighting Plant
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED

December 31, 1994 and 1593

NOTE A - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - Continued

5.

Sick Leave Trust Fund

The Plant established a Sick Leave Trust Fund ("Trust") in
1982 for the financing of future sick leave payments. It is
the Plant’s intention that the Trust be funded to the extent
of the Plant’'s sick leave liability and that future sick leave
expense will be paid by the Trust once full funding is
achieved. The assets of the Trust are shown in the financial
statements to provide a more meaningful presentation, as the
assets of the Trust are for the sole benefit of the Plant.
The assets of the Trust are shown at cost. The market value
of the trust assets at December 31, 1994 and 1993, were
$2,750,723 and $2,687,059, respectively. The funds are
invested in money market funds, treasury notes, mutual funds
which invest in government securities, common stocks, and
corporate bonds. Net investment income for the Trust of
approximately $147,000 and $208,000 in 1994 and 1993,
respectively, is reflected in the statements of earnings as an
offset to compensated absence expense, as these funds are
restricted and can only be used for the payment of sick leave
benefits. The net expense for sick leave was approximately
$283,000 and $179,000 for the years ended December 31, 1994
and 1993, respectively.

Customer Credits

The Plant’'s rates include a Purchased Power Cost Adjustment
(PPCA) which allows an adjustment of rates charged to
customers in order to recover all changes in power costs from
stipulated base costs. The PPCA provides for a quarterly
reconciliation of total power costs billed with the actual
cost of power incurred. Any excess or deficiency in amounts
collected as compared to costs incurred is deferred and either
credited or billed to customers over subsequent periods.

investment in Seabrook

The Plant’'s Investment in Seabrook represents a 0.10034% joint
ownership share. The Plant records annually depreciation
computed at 4% of the initial investment in Seabrook. The
Plant’s percentage share of new plant additions are
capitalized and their share of operating and maintenance
expenses, and decommissioning expenses (see note C) are
charged against earnings.

10



Taunton Municipal Lighting Plant

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED
December 31, 1994 and 1993

NOTE A - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - Continued
8. Cash Equivalents

For purposes of the Statement of Cash Flows, the Plant
considers certificates of deposit with maturities of three
months or less to be cash equivalents.

9. Vacation

In 1994, the Plant adopted Governnental Accounting Standards
Board Statement No. 16 (GASB No. 16), "Accounting for
Compensated Absences". In accordance with GASB No. 16, the
Plant has retroactively restated unappropriated retained
earnings at December 31, 1992. The effect of the adoption
was not material to operations in 1994 and 1993.

10. Reclassifications

Certain amounts in the financial statements for the year
ended December 31, 1993 have been reclassified to conform to

the current year presentation.

NOTE B - CASH AND CERTIFICATES OF DEPOSIT
The Plant’'s cash is deposited with the City of Taunton Treasurer who
commingles it with other City funds. The City invests the cash and
credits the Plant each year with interest earned on the cash deposits.

Cash and certificates of deposit deposited with the City of Taunton
consiste of the following at December 31,

1994 1993

Interest bearing pooled funds including

restricted customer deposits of

$346,761 and $302,125, respectively $12,309,233 § 5,459,451
Certificates of deposit with rates

of 4.95% - 5.25% maturing at various

dates during 1995 910,000 -
Certificates of deposit with rates of

2.90% - 4% maturing at various dates

during 199%4 - 5,198,362
Certificates of deposit with rates of
5.08% maturing 1996 3,320,000 3,320,000

$46.232.233 513,977,813
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Taunton Municipal Lighting Plant
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED

December 31, 1994 and 1993

NOTE E - LONG-TERM DEBT

Long-term debt is comprised of the following bonds:

. . 1993
Electric loan, Act of 1969
Interest rate - various rates from

7.3% to 8%, interest payable

February 1 and August 1, due
serially to February 1, 2006 $16,280,000 $17,055,000
Unamortized premium 36,862 40,216
16,316,862 17,095,216
Less current maturities —..840,000 __ 775,000
Total long-.erm debt $32.476,.862 516,320,216
Aggregate maturities of long-term debt at December 31, 1994, are as

follows:
1995 $ 840,000
1996 910,000
1997 985,000
1998 1,065,000
1999 1,150,000
Thereafter 11,330,000
$1£.280,000
NOTE F - CONTRIBUTION IN LIEU OF TAXES

The Plant contributed $2,360,000 in 1994 and 1993 to the City of

Ta
th

NOTE

unton in lieu of taxes. All contributions to the City are voted by
e Municipal Light Commission.

G - COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

‘ o 2

The City of Taunton, acting by vote of its Municipal Lighting Plant
Commission, entered into an agreement with Montaup Electric Company
("Montaup"), dated July 31, 1970, as amended, concerning
interconnection of electrical operations, purchase and sale of
kilowatt capacity, and construction by Taunton of a generating unit
of approximately 110 megawatt capability. The agreement, originally
for the twelve (12) years following the commencement of operations
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Taunton Municipal Lighting Plant

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED

December 31, 1994 and 1993

NOTE G - COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES - Continued

of Unit No. 9 on December 1, 1975, was amended and the term extended
to October 31, 1988. Under the current interconnection agreement,
the City agrees to exchange with Montaup Electric Company fifteen
(15) megawatts of Unit No. 9 capacity for ten (10) megawatts of
capacity from the Canal No. 2 generating unit, 50% of which is owned
by Montaup. The Plant credited to sales for resale $317,755 and
$265,287 of capacity and energy charges billed to Montaup Electric
Company in 1994 and 1993, respectively, for its share of power under
the interconnection agreement.

Hydro-Quebec Agreement

In 1988, the Plant entered into an agreement with the Massachusetts
Municipal Wholesale Electric Company and other New England Utilities
to support the operation of a transmission line to permit the
interchange of electricity between such utilities and Hydro-Quebec
Electric Corporation (HydroQuebec). In connection with the
agreement, the Plant advanced approximately $800,000 toward
development of the project of which approximately $450,000 was
returned after the project had obtained financing. 1In 1991, the
Hydro Quebec proj:ct was completed. Upon completion of this
project, each participant received stock in the New England Hydro
Transmission Electric Company and The New England Hydro Transmission
Corporation proportional to their advances. The investment is being
accounted for on the cost basis. The stock received is not readily
marketable, but gives the holder rights to purchase power at a
percentage of the fossil fuel rate.

During the years ended December 31, 1994 and 1993, the Plant
received dividends from the above noted Companies in the amounts of
$55,055 and $76,762, respectively.

NOTE H - PENSION PLANS

The Plant contributes to the City of Taunton Employees’ Retirement
System ("System"), a public employee retirement system that acts as
the investment and administrative agent for the City. All full-time
employees participate in the System.

Instituted in 1937, the System is a member of the Massachusetts
Contributory System and is governed by Massachusetts General Laws
Chapter 32, Membership in the System is mandatory upon the
commencement of employment for all permanent, full-time employees.

The System provides for retirement allowance benefits up to a maximum
of B0% of a member’'s highest three-year average annual rate of regular
compensation. Benefit payments are based upon a member’'s age, length
of creditable service, level of compensation and group classification.

14




Taunton Municipal Lighting Plant
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED

December 31, 1994 and 1993

NOTE H - PENSION PLANS - Continued

Members of the System become vested after 10 years of creditable
service. A retirement allowance may be received upon reaching age 65
Or upon attaining twenty years of service. The System also provides
for early retirement at age 55 if the participant (1) has a record of
10 years of creditable service, (2) was on the City’'s payroll on
January 1, 1978, (3) voluntarily left City employment on or after that
date, and (4) left accumulated annuity deductions in the fund. Active
members contribute either 5%, 7% or 8% of their regular compensation
depending on the date upon which their membership began. The System
also provides death and disability benefits.

The System does not make a separate measurement of assets and the
pension benefit obligation for the Plant. The pension benefit
obligation is a standardized disclosure measure of the present value
of pension benefits, adjusted for the effects of projected salary
increases and step-rate benefits, estimated to be payable in the
future as a result of employee service to date. The measure is
intended to help users assess the funding status of the System on a
going-concern basis, assess progress made in accumulating sufficient
assets to pay benefits when due, and make comparisons among employers.
The measure is the actuarial present value of credited projected
benefits and is independent of the funding method used to determine
contributions to the System.

The Plant performed a separate valuation to estimate its portion of
the total System benefit obligation and assets. As of July 1, 1991
(the most current valuation date), the Plant’'s pension benefit
obligation was $22,800,000 determined through an actuarial valuation
performed for the Plant. The System’s net assets available for
benefits, allocated to the Plant, on July 1, 1991 (valued at market)
were $8,700,000 (excluding assets held in Employee Retirement Trust
Fund), leaving an unfunded pension benefit obligation of $14,100,000.

The Plant has established a separate Employees Retirement Trust Fund
(Trust Fund) for the financing of future pension payments. The Trust
Fund had net assets (at cost) of $12,806,000 and $12,656,000 at
December 31, 1994 and 1993, respectively. The market value of the net
assets at December 31, 1594 and 1993 was $12,373,000 and $13,188,000,
respectively. These funds are invested in money market funds, fixed
income securities including government and corporate bonds and other
equity securities. The Plant has made no contributions to the Trust
Fund in either 1994 or 1993.

Beginning on July 1, 1953, the Plant is to receive from the Trust
Fund, over the next thirty-two years, an amount equal to eighty-five
percent of the annual amortization of the unfunded pension liability.
The remaining fifteen percent of the unfunded pension liability will
be contributed from current year operations.
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Taunton Municipal Lighting Plant

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONTINUED

December 31,

PENSION PLANS

Continued
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Taunton Municipal Lighting Plant
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED
December 31, 1994 and 1993

NOTE I - COAL FIRE ELECTRIC GENERATING FACILITY - Continued

The ground lease extends for a period of forty years. Rental payments
to the Plant were $50,000 per year until September 1%, 1994, $500,000
per year until operations commence, and $1,100,000 per year for the
remaining lease term.

The Plant has agreed to purchase 20% of the power generated once the
coal plant is in operation, which is approximately 30 megawatts. The
agreement is for twenty years.

The Plant has secured a mortgage on the buildings and facilities to be
constructed to secure payment of the aggregate differential. The
aggregate differential represents funds to be paid to the Plant in the
event that the project is not completed. Payment is based on a dollar
value per kilowatt which increases over the duration of the
construction period.

If operations do not commence by September 15, 1996, the Plant may
terminate all contracts with the Developer. In the event of
termination of the contracts, the Plant may be entitled to
reimbursement by the Developer of up to 50% of certain costs incurred
by the Plant.

As of December 31, 1994, the Plant has capitalized approximately
$1,560,000 of legal and administrative costs which are included in
construction work in progress. These costs will be amortized over the
contract period once operations have commenced.

With respect to the proposed plant construction, the Plant is involved
in certain legal matters relating to zoning. In the opinion of
management, the resolution of these matters will not effect the
ultimate completion of this project.

NOTE J - DEFERRED MAINTENANCE

A unit of the Plant underwent a maintenance overhaul, of which the
related costs are being amortized over a five-year period. The
unamortized balance at December 31, 1994 and 1993 is $530,432 and
$903,824, respectively.
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Taunton Municipal Lighting Plant
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED
December 31, 1994 and 1993

NOTE K - POST EMPLOYMENT EENEFITS

In addition to the pension benefits described in note H, the Plant
provides post employment health care benefits to retirees that meet

certain requirements. Retirees of the Plant under age 65 are eligible
for the same health benefits as active employees, while retirees over
the age of 65 are eligible for MEDEX. The costs of the benefits
provided to retirees are borne 75% by the Plant, and 25% by the

retirees. Retiree’s survivors must bear the full cost of the
benefits.

The Plant is charged their prorata portion of the "pay-as-you-go" cost
of benefits based on an allocation by the City done annually. For
1994 and 1993, the costs allocated to the Plant were $330,879 and
$346,842, respectively.

NOTE L - CONTINGENCIES

The Plant is involved in various legal matters incident to its
business, none of which is believed by management to be significant to
the financial condition of the Plant.
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Taunton Municipai Lighting Plant
Utiity Piant
For Period Ending December 31 1004

Title of Batance Balance Depreciated
Account 0170104 Addtions 12/31/94 Value 12/31/04
Station Production Plant

Land and Land Rights $749 368 $0 $743 366 $0 $740 366
Structures & Improvements 7511107 (111833 7399174 5,799 335 1.509 839
Boiler Plant £ quipment 19026 490 232 955 19143 622 13601778 5541 844
Turbe Generator Units 18035 371 164 319 18,229 690 11,114 861 7.114829
Acessory Electric Group 2,636 262 30 609 2666 871 2689 489 (22.618)
Misc Power Plant Equip 660 790 40 303 3 679,263 485 544 193 719

Total Steam Production Plant 48 619 386 386 253 45 567 986 33,691 007 15176 979
Other Production Plant

Fuel Holders & Accessories 542 044

Generators 83 407

Accessory Electric Group 407 598

Total Other Production Plant 25 1,033, 040

Transmission Plant

N
A

Land & Land Rights 218577
Clearing Land Right of Way 35022
Structures & linprovements 133,392
Station Equipment 2381737
Towers & Fidures 908 333
Poles & Fixtures 2116258
Overhead Conductor Device 1227329
Underground Conduit Elec 3104
Underground Conductor Fiec 6,170

216,242 0 216,242
35,022 0 35,022
133,392 84 664 48 728
2,395 854 1,507,255 888,599
908 333 621,285 287 048
2,139,908 703,105 1,438 504
227 328 445 821 781 508
3,104 2092 1,012
6,170 3758 2411

000 OoOoO9O0O

Total Transmission Plant 7029823

o

7,085,355 3,367 981 3697374




Utitity Plant
For Period Ending December 31, 1994

Accumulated
Title of Balance Balance Depreciation Depreciated
Account 010104 Additions Retirements 12/31/94 1273104 Vaive 12731094
Distribuiion Plant

Land & Land Rights 156 833 2556 150 489 c 159 489
Structures & Improvements 663 585 3,900 667 485 246 468 418019
Station £ quipment 2517 804 277439 2.795,243 2,344 962 450 251
Storage Battery Equip 1,437 5 1,442 161 1,284
Poles Towers & Fodures 3812272 228 052 4 040 324 2903872 1,136 452
Overhead Conduit & Device S 187 197 546 422 5646 977 2,295 971 3,351,006
Underground Condut 2421938 180712 2602 650 1.833 520 768130
Underground Conductor & Devic 2233 %5 150 921 0 2.384 B86 1682578 702 307
Line Transformers 3867199 265 976 4133175 1,742 523 2,390 652
Services 664 702 58733 724 435 277,200 447 235
Metars 1.665 357 44150 1.708 507 1.327 595 381912
E C S Program 2 B34 960 447 590 3,282 550 1021278 2261272
St Light & Signal Systems 1,489 392 37.258 1,026 650 808 204 718,356

Total Distribution Plant 27 516 641 244 B14 f 20674813 16 487 451 13,187,362
Genera! Plant

Land & Land Rights 40972 0
Structures 8 Improvements 1,442 217 560,335
Office Furniture 8 Equipment 690 251 109,020
Transporation Equipment 1,403 788 72070
Store Equipment 162 001 8 099
Tool Shop Garage Equip 33,283 (958)
Laboratory Equipment 15,204 0
Power Operated Equipment 28194 374
Communication Equipment 128 9456 72328
Misc Equipment 103 410 10,299

40 972 0 40872
2,002 552 581 454 1,421,088
799 271 288 867 510,404
1,466 820 713,083 753,737
170,100 10,553 159 547
32,325 20017 12,308
15,204 16,325 (1,121)
28 568 28,265 303
201,274 83 866 117,408
113,709 50,005 63,704

0
0
0
38
0
0
0
0
0
0

Total General Plant 4 048 266 831567 4870795 1,792 435 3078360

LESS CONTRIBUTION IN y (64 158) ©4.158)
AID OF CONSTRUCTION

Total Utility Plant in Service 88 157 500 315231673 231333 901 447 840 o
Construction W | P 3934774 5,603,141 3.105 989 6,431,926 6.431 926

$92,092.274 $9.126 814 $3.330 322 $97 879,766 $41,833 428
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Taunton Municipal Lighting Plant

OPERATING EXPENSES
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Taunton Municipal Lighting Plant
OPERATING EXPENSES - CONTINUED

Year ended December 31,

Brought forward

CUSTOMER ACCOUNTING
Meter reading labo
Accounting and col
Uncollectible acco

Advertising expense

91,347
1,077,561
222,000

8,876
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Total customer accounting

ADMINISTRATIVE AND GENERAL
Operation
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767
082
372
702 :
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290 140,832
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Total administrative and general 4,700,143 _5,441,016
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The Global Leader

MASSACHUSETTS MUNICIPAL WHOLESALE
ELECTRIC COMPANY

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS WITH
SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

DECEMBER 31, 1994, 1993 AND 1992
WITH INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT THEREON
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Financial Statements
Statements of Financial Position
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Statements of Cash Flows
Notes to Financial Statements

Supplementary Schedules
Independent Auditors’ Report on Supplementary Information
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'Peat Marwick LLp

One Boston Place Telephone 617 723 7700 Telefax 617 723 6864

Boston, MA 02108-4563

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

The Board of Directors

Massachusetts Municipal Wholesale Electric Company

We have audited the accompanying statements of financial position of Massachusetts
Municipal Wholesale Electric Company (a Massachusetts public corporation) as of December
31, 1994, 1993 and 1992 and the related statements of operations and cash flows for the years
then ended. These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company's management
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards
Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes
examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant
estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement
presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements re.erred to above present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of Massachusetts Municipal Wholesale Electric Company as of

December 31, 1994, 1993 and 1992, and the results of its operations and its cash flows for the
years then ended in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles

P AT s 4

March 10, 1995




MASSACHUSETTS MUNICIPAL WHOLESALE ELECTRIC COMPANY
STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION
DECEMBER 31, 1994, 1993 AND 1992

(In Thousands)

ASSETS
1994 1993 1992
Electric Plant
In Service (Note 4) $ 1,233,829 $ 1,233,845 $ 1,231,359
Accumulated Depreciation (285,104) (243,440) (201,172)
948,725 990,405 1,030,187
Nuclear Fuel - Net of Amortization 14,731 19,553 24,626
Total Electric Plant 963,456 1,009,958 1,054, 813

Special Funds (Notes 2 and 7) 182,830 191,099 196,259

Current Assets
Cash and Temporary Investments (Note 7) 989 1,013 3,619
Accounts Receivable 5,027 9,361 163
Unbilled Revenues 5,104 7,813 ,491
Inventories 15,597 14,846 5,261
Prepaid Expenses 7,413 7,636 ,652
Total Current Assets 34,130 40,669 40,186
Total Special Funds and Current Assets 216,960 231,768 236,445

Deferred Charges

Amounts Recoverable Under Terms of the
Power Sales Agreements (Note 2) 214,217 189,808
Unamortized Debt Discount and Expenses 35,817 39,340
Nuclear Decommissioning Trusts (Note 8) 6,110 4,683
Other 4,253 2,966
260,397 236,797
$ 1,440,813 $ 1,478,523

LIABILITIES

Long-Term Debt
Bonds Payable (Note 3 and 8) ,341,215 $ 1,374,605

Current Liabilities
Current Maturities of Long-Term Debt (Note 3 and 8) 36,420
Notes Payable (Note 3) .
Accounts Payable 8,525
Accrued Expenses 10,969
Member and Participant Advances and Reserves 36,479
92,393
Deferred Credits 7,205

Commitments and Contingencies (Note 6)

$ 1,440,813 $ 1.478.523 $ 1.469. 763

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements




Revenues (Note 2)
Interest Income
Total Revenues and Interest Income

Operating and Service Expenses:
Fuel Used in Electric Generation
Purchased Power
Other Operating
Maintenance
Depreciation
Taxes Other Than Income

Interest Expense:
Interest Charges
Interest Charged to Projects During
Construction (Note 2)

Total Operating Costs and Interest Expense

Cost of Advance Refunding - Net (Note 3)
Gain on Cancelled Units - Net (Note 4)
Gain on Retirement of Debt

Increase in Amounts Recoverable Under the
Power Sales Agreements due to Excess of
Expenses over Revenues (Note 2)

1994 1993 1992

$ 233,910 § 248,630 § 275,041
11,139 11,083 13,435
§ 245049  § 259,713  § 288,476
$ 1635 § 20062 § 23,831
61,940 74,134 78,925
35,500 29,451 32,533
9,746 10,470 11,873
44,366 44,187 44,101
5,139 6076 8,225
173,050 184,380 199,488
81,489 89,742 114,459
(36) (169) (466)
81,455 89,573 113,993
254503 273,953 313,481
12,902 43,857 73,180
6) (601) 671)
. . (207)
12,89 4325 72,302
_(22,350) _ (57,49) (97,307)
§ 245049 § 259,713 § 288,476

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.




MASSACHUSETTS MUNICIPAL WHOLESALE ELECTRIC COMPANY

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1994, 1993 AND 1992
(In Thousands)
1994 1993 1992
Cash flows from operating activities:
Total Revenues and Interest Income $ 245,049 $ 259,713 $ 288,476
Total Costs and Expenses, net (267,399) (317,209) (385,783)
Adjustments to arrive at net cash
provided (used) by operating activities:
Depreciation and Decommissioning 45,387 45,112 44,978
Amortization 9,922 14,517 15,315
Write off of Debt Discount and Expenses 10,440 10,288 19,480
Change in current assets and liabilities:
Accounts Receivable 4,334 (3,198) (440)
Unbilled Revenues 2,709 678 227
Inventories (751) 415 4,402
Prepaid Expenses 223 (984) (1,009)
Accounts Payable 193 (2,749) (4,601)
Accrued Expenses and Other (2,024) 4,720 (361)
Member and Participant Advances
and Reserves (8,307) 2,194 (e
Net cash provided (used) by operating activities 39,776 13,497 (31,227)
Cash flows from investing activities:
Construction Expenditures and Purchases of
Nuclear Fuel (4,281) (10,312) (4,943)
Interest Charged to Projects During Construction (36) (169) (466)
Net Reduction in Special Funds 8,269 5,160 59,928
Net Unrealized Loss on Special Funds (2,059) - -
Decommissioning Trust Refunds (Payments), net (1,427) (1,259) 1,297
Other 4 620 426
Net cash provided (used) for investing activities 891 (5,960) 56,242
Cash flows from financing activities:
Proceeds from Sale of Bonds 432,380 444,290 748,295
Payment for Bond Issue Costs (10,482) (13,064) (27,427)
Payments for Principal of Long-Term Debt (30,525) (29,165) (27,880)
Payment for Defeasance of Bonds (432,000) (412,155) (716,325)
Change in Notes Payable L) (49) 113
Net cash used for financing activities (40,691) (10,143) ~(23,224)
Net increase (decrease) in cash and temporary
investments (24) (2,606) 1,791
Cash and Temporary Investments at Beginning of Year 1,013 ~ 3,619 1,828
Cash and Temporary Investments at End of Year $ 989 $ 1013 $ 3619
Cash paid during the year for interest
(Net of amount capitalized as shown above) $ 77,579 $ 86,035 $ 111,464

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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MMWEC is a political subdivision of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts,
authorized to issue revenue bonds secured by revenues derived from Power Sales Agreements (PSAs)
with its members and other electric systems to finance the construction and ownership of electric
power facilities. A Massachusetts city or town having a municipal electric department, authorized by
majority vote of the city or town, may become a member by applying for admission to MMWEC and
agreeing to comply with the terms and conditions of membership as the MMWEC By-Laws may
require. As of December 31, 1994, twenty-eight Massachusetts municipalities were members.
MMWEC obtains power supply capacity by acquiring interests in various generating units and the
operation of its own electric generating facilities (Projects). In addition, MMWEC contracts for
power for resale to its members and other utilities.

@ Signifi : ine Polici

MMWEC presents its financial statements in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles as promulgated by the Financial Accounting Standards Board.

| . { 40 Projacts Dandes .

MMWEC capitalizes interest as an element of the cost of electric plant and nuclear
fuel in process. A corresponding amount is reflected as a reduction of interest expense. The amount
of interest capitalized is based on the cost of debt, including amortization of debt discount and
expenses, related to each Project, net of investment gains and losses and interest income derived from
unexpended Project funds.

Nugclear Fuel

Nuclear fuel includes MMWEC's ownership interest of fuel in use, in stock and in
process for Millstone Unit 3 and Seabrook Station. Fuel in use is reflected net of accumulated
amortization of $57.2, $50.8 and $40.0 million through December 31, 1994, 1993 and 1992,
respectively. The cost of nuclear fuel is amortized to Fuel Used in Electric Generation based on the
relationship of energy produced in the current period to total expected energy production for fuel in
the reactor. A provision for fuel disposal costs is included in Fuel Used in Electric Generation based
upon disposal contracts with the Department of Energy (DOE). In addition, Fuel Used in Electric
Generation includes the annual assessment, under the Energy Policy Act of 1992, for the costs of
decontamination and decommissioning of uranium enrichment plants operated by the DOE. Billings
from the DOE will occur over the next 13 years. Ai December 31, 1994, MMWEC's share of
Millstone Unit 3 and Seabrook Station unbilled assessments was $498,000 and $749,000,
respectively. The amounts are included in Other Deferred Charges and Deferred Credits on the
Statements of Financial Position.

5.



The composition of Special Funds is as follows:

1994 1993 1992
Fund (In Thousands)
Construction Fund for deposit of bond proceeds 10
be used for costs of acquisition and construction $ - $ - $ 517
Bond Fund Interest, Principal and Retirement
Account to pay principal and interest on bonds 20,741 19,573 15,370

Bond Fund Reserve Account set at the maximum

annual interest obligation to make up any

deficiencies in the Bond Fund Interest,

Principal and Retirement Account 77,405 88,166 102,243
Reserve and Contingency Fund to make up

deficiencies in the Bond Fund and pay for

renewals and extraordinary costs 17,927 17,140 18,364
Revenue Fund to receive revenues and disburse

them to other funds 50,323 47,461 47,784
Working Capital Funds to maintain funds to cover

operating expenses 16,434 18,759 11,981
Total Special Funds 182830  §1901000  §196259

The Special Funds, other than certain working capital funds, are restricted as to their
use by the General Bond Resolution, which also prescribes investment thereof. Investments are
limited to direct obligations of, or obligations the principal of and interest on which are
unconditionally guaranteed by the United States, certificates or receipts representing direct ownership
of future interest or principal payments on direct obligations of, or obligations where the principal of,
and interest are guaranteed by the United States, certain federal government agency securities, new
housing authority bonds issued by public agencies or municipalities, tax-exempt obligations rated in
the three highest rating categories or shares of investment companies which solely invest in such
obligations, time deposits and certificates of deposits issued by banks insured by the Federal Deposit
Insurance Corporation (FDIC) which deposits are either fully insured by the FDIC, collateralized by
government securities or which deposits are issued by a party whose long-term unsecured debt is rated
in one of the three highest long-term rating categories, and repurchase agreements provided that a
specific written repurchase agreement governs the transaction and the security underlying the
repurchase agreement is held by an independent third party. Also, included are bonds or other
obligations of any state of the United States or any agency or local government unit of a state which



MASSACHUSETTS MUNICIPAL WHOLESALE
ELECTRIC COMPANY
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31,1994, 1993 AND 1992

(2) Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Special Funds (continued)

have been advance refunded and are not callable, domestic dollar denominator money market muiual
funds rated in the two highest rating categories, participation units in the combined investments fund
created under Massachusetts laws for the purposes of investment by local governments, and shares of
investment companies which are authorized to invest in assets or securities comprised of government
securities, agency securities, new housing bonds, tax-exempt bonds, and repurchase agreements noted
above. Certain Special Funds are more restricted as to which of the aforementioned investments can
be purchased.

Special Funds include amounts held in trust under Power Purchase Agreements,
working capital arrangements and agency contracts. These trusteed funds are invested in securities as
outlined within the General Bond Resolution, and in repurchase agreements secured by certain
securities at banks where MMWEC has established accounts, although the working capital
arrangement and agency contracts are not governed by the General Bond Resolution.

Cash and Temporary Investments
Certain cash and temporary investment amounts are used for power purchases and
working capital requirements of MMWEC. These funds are not governed by the General Bond
Resolution. In addition to the investment securities delineated in the General Bond Resolution,
MMWEC invests in repurchase agreements with banks where MMWEC has established accounts.

Inventories
Fuel oil and spare parts inventory are recorded and accounted for by the average cost
method. At December 31, 1994, 1993 and 1992, fuel oil inventory was valued at $5.1, $4.2 and $3 .4
million, and spare parts inventory amounted to $10.5, $10.6 and $11.9 million, respectively.

Revenues and Unbilled Revenues
Revenues include electric sales for resale provided from MMWEC's operating units
and power purchases and billings for administrative and general services provided to MMWEC's
Service Participants. These and additional details of revenues are as follows:

Revenues 1994 1993 1992
(In Thousands)
Electric sales for resale $229,586 $243 817 $270.455
Service 2,324 2,813 2,586
PSNH Settlement 000 L — 2,000
Total Revenues £223910  $248630 8225041



MASSACHUSETTS MUNICIPAL WHOLESALE
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) Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Revenues and Unpbilled Revenues (continued)

MMWEC bills its members for costs incurred in providing services and purchased
power obtained on their behalf under terms of the Service Agreement and Power Purchase
Agreements. Service revenues are recorded as the expenses are incurred. Amounts which are not yet
billed are included in Unbilled Revenues on the Statements of Financial Position.

Amounts Recoverable Under Terms of the Power Sales Agreements

Billings to Project Participants are designed to recover costs in accordance with the
PSAs. The billings are structured on a Project-by-Project basis to provide for debt service, operating
funds and reserve requirements. Expenses are reflected in the Statements of Operations in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles. The timing difference between amounts billed versus
expensed is charged or credited to Amounts Recoverable Under Terms of the PSAs. Amounts will be
recovered through future billings or an expense will be recognized to offset credit balances. The
principal differences include depreciation, fuel amortization, costs associated with cancelled Projects,
cost of refunding, billing for certain interest, reserves, net unrealized gain or loss on securities
available for sale and other costs. An increase in Amounts Recoverable Under Terms of the PSAs is
primarily caused by recognition of depreciation expense in excess of bond principal payments related
to a Project and the cost of refinancing programs. Individual Projects have a cumulative deferral of
costs which total $220.3, $201.4 and $164.9 million and Projects have cumulative billings in excess
of costs which total $6.1, $11.6 and $32.6 million at December 31, 1994, 1993 and 1992,
respectively. These amounts have been netted in the Statements of Financial Position.

The December 31, 1994 balance of $214.2 million reflects the Statements of
Operations net increase of $22.4 million and the net unrealized loss of $2.0 million on securities
available for sale.

o iscionine T

MMWEC maintains external trust funds, as promulgated by Nuclear Regulatory
Commission (NRC) and state regulations, to provide for the decommissioning activities of Millstone
Unit 3 and Seabrook Station. The December 31, 1994 Millstone Unit 3 and Seabrook Station
balances of $3.4 and $2.7 million, respectively, are stated at cost and included as part of the Deferred
Charges and Deferred Credits on the Statements of Financial Position. MMWEC's share of the
estimated reserve requirement for the prompt dismantling and removal of the Millstone Unit 3 and
Seabrook Station, at the expiration of their original operating licenses in 2025 and 2026, is $20 and
$44 million, respectively.

D o
Electric plant in service is depreciated using the straight-line method. The aggregate
annual provisions for depreciation for 1994, 1993 and 1992 averaged 4% of the original cost of

depreciable property.

R-



(2)  Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Interest Rate Protection Agreement
Premiums paid for purchase of an Interest Rate Protection Agreement are amortized to
interest expense over the term of the agreement. Unamortized premiums are included in Other
Deferred Charges in the Statements of Financial Position.

Reclassificati
Certain reclassifications have been made to the Financial Statements for prior years to
conform to the 1994 presentation.

(3) Debt
Power Supply System Revenue Bonds

To finance the ownership interests in electric generating facilities under its General
Bond Resolution, MMWEC issued Power Supply System Revenue Bonds (Bonds). The Bonds are
secured under the General Bond Resolution by a pledge of the revenues derived by MMWEC under
the terms of the PSAs and from the ownership and operation of the Projects in its power supply
system. Pursuant to the PSAs, each Project Participant is obligated to pay its share of the actual costs
relating to the generating units planned, under construction or in operation. The Project Participants’
obligations are not contingent upon the completion or operational status of the units.

MMWEC financings, other than obligations maturing within one year, require
Massachusetts Department of Public Utilities' (DPU) authorization. In 1994, 1993 and 1992,
MMWEC issued $432.4, $444.3 and $748.3 million of refunding bonds, respectively. The proceeds
of the 1994 Series bonds, when combined with $9.8 million from the Bond Fund Reserve Account
and Bond Retirement Account, were utilized to defease $432 million of the 1977 Series A and B
bonds and portions of the 1992 Series A, 1992 Series B, 1992 Series D, 1992 Series E, 1993 Series A
and 1994 Series B bonds. The proceeds of the 1993 Series bonds, when combined with $14.5 million
from the Bond Fund Reserve Account and Bond Fund Principal Account, were utilized to defease
$412.1 million of the 1976 Series A bonds and portions of the 1978 Series A, 1979 Series A and 1987
Series A bonds. The proceeds of the 1992 Series bonds, when combined with $49.1 million from the
Bond Fund Reserve Account, Construction Fund and Bond Fund Principal Account, were utilized to
defease $716.3 million of bonds comprised of the 1980 through 1982 Series bonds and portions of the
1984 Series A, 1985 Series B and 1987 Series B bonds. The proceeds from the refunding bonds and
the available funds have been deposited in irrevocable escrow accounts and used to purchase direct
obligations of the United States Government in ai. amount sufficient to pay the debt service
requirements of the refunded bonds through the redemption dates. The aggregate balances of
defeased debt at December 31, 1994, 1993 and 1992 was $285.2, $296.1 and $111.8 million,

respectively.



MASSACHUSETTS MUNICIPAL WHOLESALE
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(3) Debi (continued)

Power Supply System Revenue Bonds (continued)

The net cost of the 1994, 1993 and 1992 refundings equalled $12.9, $43.9 and $73.2
million, net of $2.7, $2.8 and $7.9 million of expenses, respectively. MMWEC's 1994, 1993 and
1992 refinancing programs in effect reduced the aggregate debt service payments by $107.9, $146.6
and $693.4 million over the remaining life of the bonds and obtained an economic gain (difference
between the present values of the old and new debt service payments) of $45.9, $65.5 and $288.2
million, respectively.

Bonds Payable consists of serial, term and variable bonds and are comprised of the
following issues. The serial and term bonds are generally subject to optional redemption
approximately ten years after the issue date, at 103% of the principal amount, descending periodically
thereafter to 100%.

Net Interest December 31,
Issue —Cost___ 1994 1993 1992
(In Thousands)

1976 Series A 7.2% $ - $ - $ 56,005
1977 Series A 6.4% - 144,240 147 815
1977 Series B 6.1% - 74,325 75,910
1978 Series A 6.8% - 1,085 60,045
1979 Series A 7.0% - - 118,125
1984 Series A 11.0% - 800 1,515
1985 Series B 13.5% 185 525 825
1987 Series A 8.9% 10,250 10,730 195,815
1987 Series B 11.8% - - 540
1992 Series A 7.0% 100,875 104,910 104,910
1992 Series B 7.0% 201,410 322,665 326,335
1992 Series C 6.9% 60,345 61,070 61,070
1992 Series D 6.3% 87,190 104,690 105,805
1992 Series E 6.0% 115,745 140,050 149,040
1992 Series F 53% - - 1,055
1993 Series A 5.3% 390,275 441,255 -
1993 Series B 59% 930 1,435 -
1994 Series A 5.3% 115,640 - -
1994 Series B 51% 197,190 - -
1994 Series C Variable 97600 —_— —r
Bonds Payable 1 377, 635 1,407,780 1,404 810
Less: Current Maturities —(33.175) —(28.110)
Total Long-Term Debt mm $1374605  $L376.700

-10-



(3) Debt (continued)

Power Supply System Revenue Bonds (corntinued)

The aggregate annual principal payments due on the bonds in the next five years are as
follows: 1995 - $36,420,000; 1996 - $37,750,000; 1997 - $39,415,000; 1998 - $41,315,000; and
1999 - $44,650,000.

The interest rates on the 1994 Series C variable-rate bonds are adjusted from
time-to-time. Bondholders may require repurchase of the 1994 Series C bonds at the time of such
interest rate adjustment. MMWEC has entered into an agreement to provide for the remarketing of
the 1994 Series C bonds if repurchase is required. Also, MMWEC has entered into an agreement
with a bank which generally provides for the purchase by the bank of the 1994 Series C bonds if not
remarketed and issuance of bank bonds under a separate letter of credit facility. The debt service on
the 1994 Series C bonds is on a parity with the senior lien fixed-rate bonds to the extent that the debt
service on the 1994 Series C bonds is equal to or less than the debt service on the bonds refunded by
the 1994 Series C bonds in a given bond year.

Debt Service F { Dell :

In conjunction with the issuance of the 1994 Series C bonds, MMWEC also entered
into an investment instrument, known as a "Debt Service Forward Delivery Agreement” (Forward
Agreement) for purposes other than trading. The purpose of the Forward Agreement is to improve
the return on the investment of monies on a portion of the Bond Fund during the seven year term of
the agreement. MMWEC currently makes monthly deposits to the various accounts within the Bond
Fund for the semiannual payment of debt service on its outstanding bonds. The Forward Agreement
relates to the investment of these monies prior to the time such deposits are to be used for semiannual
debt service payments. In exchange for the right to dictate the investment of such monies, the
counterparty pays & fixed amount to MMWEC on a periodic basis, providing MMWEC a fixed return
on the funds available during the term of the Forward Agreement. The counterparty has the right to
sel! to MMWEC Government Obligations that mature prior to the relevant debt service payment dates
during the term of the Forward Agreement. The effect of the agreement will allow MMWEC to earn
a yield on these investments equal to the yield that could be earned on a security with a five to seven
year comparable maturity purchased at the time the contract was executed, while complying with the
maturity limitations for investments in the Bond Fund under the terms of the General Bond
Resolution.

-11-
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(3) Debt (continued)

Debt Service Forward Delivery Agreement (continued)

MMWEC reserves the right to terminate the Forward Agreement in whole or in part
in connection with any purchase, redemption or refunding of fixed-rate bonds. In that event, the
Forward Agreement provides for the calculation and payment of liquidated damages. In general, if
interest rates at the time of the termination are higher than the level at the time the Forward
Agreement was executed, then MMWEC would be required to pay damages to the counterparty.
Conversely, if interest rates at the time of iermination are lower than at the time of execution of the
Forward Agreement, then the counterparty would be required to pay damages to MMWEC. In
addition, MMWEC may terminate the agreement in the event of a default by the other party. The
defauiting party would be responsible for paying damages as a result of termination, based on the
market value of the Forward Agrecment. Additionally, MMWEC has the right to terminate the
Forward Agreement if the counterparty's credit rating falls below "investment grade” category. In
that event, the Forward Agreement provides for the calculation and payment of a termination payment
designed to be in an amount sufficient to enable MMWEC to enter into an equivalent agreement with
another qualified entity.

The cash requirement under the Forward Agreement requires MMWEC to make
available to the counterparty an average balance of $30.3 million over the seven year term of the
agreement in exchange for investments in Government Securities to be held by MMWEC's trustee
which mature prior to MMWEC's debt payment dates.

The Forward Agreement is not recognized in the Statements of Financial Position to
the extent that settlement of cash in exchange for financial instruments has not occurred. To the
extent cash has been exchanged for Government Securities, the Government Securities are recorded
on the Statements of Financial Position as Special Funds.

Interest Rate Protection Agreement
The 1994 Series C bonds were issued to provide a hedge against interest rate risk on
the net funding cost of approximately $100 million of short-term floating rate investment assets.
MMWEC purchased an Interest Rate Protection Agreement (Cap Agreement) to limit the interest rate
exposure on a portion of the 1994 Series C variable-rate debt to the extent that the variable debt costs
exceed the fixed-rate received on the Forward Agreement described above.

MMWEC purchased the right to receive annually an amount by which an index-based
interest rate, which approximates the interest rate on the 1994 Series C bonds, exceeds the protection
rate in the Cap Agreement. The Cap Agreement provides MMWEC with the right to terminate the
Cap Agreement if the Cap Agreement provider or its guarantor's credit rating falls below a double A.
Upon the occurrence of such event, MMWEC may choose to receive payment of liquidation damages
in an amount designed to enable MMWEC to enter into an equivalent agreement with another
qualified institution.

«12-



(3)  Debt (continued)

Interest Rate Protection Agreement (continued)

The $41 million Cap Agreement is comprised of an $11 million tranche with a
protection rate of 6.85% which expires on June 30, 2000, and a $30 million tranche with a protection
rate of 7.25% that expires on June 30, 2002. The cost of the Cap Agreement was paid up front and is
included in Other Deferred Charges on the Statements of Financial Position. There are no fuiurc
MMWEC cash requirements under the terms of the Cap Agreement. The Cap Agreement was
purchased for purposes other than trading.

Net R vailable for Debt Servi

In accordance with the provisions of MMWEC's General Bond Resolution, MMWEC
covenants that it shall fix, revise and collect rates, tolls, rents and other fees and charges, sufficient (0
produce revenues to pay all operating and mainienance expenses and principal of, premium, if any,
and the interest on the Bonds and to pay all other obligations against its revenue. Revenues, which
include applicable interest earnings from investments, are required to equal 1.10 times the annual
debt service for each contract year ending June 30, after deduction of certain operating and
maintenance expenses and exclusive of depreciation. For the contract years ended June 30, 1994,
1993, 1992 and prior years, MMWEC met the General Bond Resolution debt service coverage
requirements for the applicable MMWEC Projects.

— Contract Year Ended June 30,

1994 1993 1992
Debt Service Coverage: (In Thousands)
Revenues $162,980 $168,531 $195,952
Other Billings 588 661 713
Reserve and Contingency Fund Billings 11,549 12,444 14,542
Total 175,117 181,636 211,207
Less: Operating & Maintenance Expenses _(48.078) (44,747) (51.251)
Available Revenues Net of Expenses $127,039 $136.880 $159.956
Debt Service Requirement $115.490 $124.444 $145.414
Coverage (110% Required) — 1 (1} — L

-13-



(3) Debt (continued)

Notes Payable

MMWEC maintains a $5 million revolving line of credit to finance temporarily certain
power purchases made by MMWEC for resale under power purchase contracts. The balances
outstanding were $0, $64,000 and $113,000 as of December 31, 1994, 1993 and 1992, respectively,
with 2 maximum outstanding balance of $197,000, $641,000 and $556,000 during 1994, 1993 and
1992, respectively. Interest charged on borrowings under the line of credit is at the bank's prime
rate. In addition, a commitment fee of one quarter of 1% per annum is charged on the unused portion
of the line based on the average daily principal amount of the loan outstanding.

@) Electric G ion Eaciliti { Financi

MMWEC's power supply capacity inciudes interests in the Stony Brook Peaking and
Intermediate units which it operates. MMWEC is a nonoperating joint owner in the W.F. Wyman
No. 4, Millstone Unit 3 and Seabrook Station units. Electric Plant In Service also includes
MMWEC's Service Operations which totalled $2.4, $2.3 and $2.3 million in 1994, 1993 and 1992,
respectively.

Facility and MMWEC —Amounts as of December 31

Projects Share of Capability (MW) 1994 1993 1992
(In Thousands)
Peaking Project Stony Brook 170.0 $ 56242 $ 56,330 $ 56,289
Intermediate Project  Stony Brook 3113 150,579 150,322 147,973
Wyman Project W.F.Wyman No. 4 22.7 7,372 7.357 7,394
Nuclear Project No. 3 Millstone Unit 3 36.8 129,079 128,651 128,372
Nuclear Mix No. 1 Milistone Unit 3 18.4 51,031 50,816 50,677
Nuclear Mix No. 1 Seabrook Station 1.9 8,562 8,575 8,579
Nuclear Project No. 4 Seabrook Station  49.8 258,202 258,545 258,665
Nuclear Project No. 5 Seabrook Station  12.6 70,676 70,764 70,794
Project No. 6 Seabrook Station  69.0 499711 _ 500,186 __500.352

$1.231.454 §1231.546 §1.229.00)

MMWEC's investment in Seabrook Station represents a substantial portion of its plant
investment and financing. In January 1988, Public Service of New Hampshire (PSNH), then the lead
owner of Seabrook Station, filed for protection from its creditors under Chapter 11 of the Federal
Bankruptcy Code. In June 1992, in accordance with a court-approved plan of reorganization,
Northeast Utilities (NU) acquired PSNH and placed Seabrook Station in a separate single asset
subsidiary corporation.

-14-
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DECEMBER 31, 1994, 1993 AND 1992

4) Electric Generation Facilities and Financing (continued)

In June 1988, MMWEC's Board of Directors adopted a strategic plan of action
relating to its Seabrook Station joint ownership interests. MMWEC and PSNH subsequently entered
into a Memorandum of Understanding whereby PSNH paid MMWEC's capital costs up to $30
million, MMWEC maintained its full ownership in Seabrook Station and agreed to a Comprehensive
Settlement Agreement which was approved by the bankruptcy court. The Agreement provided for
amendments to the Seabrook Joint Ownership Agreement, notices of default being rescinded, certain
covenants not to sue, PSNH to pay MMWEC $2 million per year for eight years upon commercial
operation of Seabrook, joint termination of the Sellback Agreement between MMWEC and PSNH and
certain other considerations.

MMWEC's net costs, including capitalized interest expenses and $126.4 million
incurred for the cancelled Seabrook Unit 2, have been deferred and are being recovered under the
terms of the PSAs.

(5) Benefit Plans

MMWEC has two non-contributory defined benefit pension plans covering
substantially all full-time active employees. One plan covers union employees (union plan) and the
other plan covers non-union employees (non-union plan).  The amount shown below as the Pension
Benefit Obligation for MMWEC is a standardized disclosure measure of the present value of pension
benefits, adjusted for the effect of projected salary increases, estimated to be payable in the future as a
result of employee service to date. The measure is the actuarial present value of credited projected
benefits and is independent of the funding method used to determine contributions to the plans.

The Pension Benefit Obligation was computed as part of an actuarial valuation
performed as of January 1, 1994. Significant actuarial assumptions used in the valuation include a
weighted-average discount rate of 7.5% a year compounded annually, and projected salary increases
of 5.5% a year compounded annually. The Pension Benefit Obligation for both plans is as follows:

——Amounts as of January 1.
1994 1993 1992
(In Thousands)
Retirees currently receiving benefits and
terminated employees not yet receiving benefits $ 282 $ 137 $ 123
Current Employees:
Vested 1,710 1,423 1,172
Non-vested 2015 _1.447 -1.239
Total Pension Benefit Obligation 4,007 3,007 2,534
Net assets available for benefits, at market _3.025 _2.395 _1.859
Unfunded Pension Benefit Obligation 3 982 $ 612 $_675
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(5) Benefit Plans (continued)

Net assets available for benefits, at market as a percentage of the Pension Benefit
Obligation, were 75.5%, 79.6% and 73.3%, as of January 1, 1994, 1993 and 1992, respectively.
The unfunded Pension Benefit Obligation as a percentage of covered payroll was 17.8%, 11.4% and
12.9% for the years ended January 1, 1994, 1993 and 1992, respectively.

MMWEC makes annual contributions to the pension plans equal to the amounts
recorded as pension expense, which were $471,000, $489,000 and $467,000, for the years ended
December 31, 1994, 1993 and 1992, respectively. Contributions as a percentage of MMWEC's
covered payroll were 7.9%, 8.9% and 8.3% for the years ended December 31, 1994, 1993 and
1992, respectively. The union plan uses the aggregate actuarial cost method and the non-union plan
uses the frozen initial liability actuarial cost method in determining pension expense. In addition to
the actuarial assumptions outlined above, the assumed long-term rate of return used in determining
pension expense was 8.5%. Pension costs applicable to prior years' service are amortized over thirty
years. Ten-year historical trend and other information which is required to be disclosed in accordance
with Governmental Accounting Standards Statement No. 5 is not considered material and therefore is
not presented.

MMWEC contributes to a employee savings plan administered by an insurance
company. All full-time employees meeting the service requirements are eligible to participate in this
defined contribution plan. Under the provisions of the plan, MMWEC's contributions vest
immediately. MMWEC contributed $104,000, $105,000 and $94,000 while the employees
contributed $167,000, $170,000 and $165,000 during the years ended December 31, 1994, 1993 and
1992, respectively.

(6) Commitments and Contingencies

Power Purchases

MMWEC entered into agreements for participation in the transmission interconnection
between New England utilities and the Hydro-Quebec electric system near Sherbrooke, Quebec (Phase
I), which began commercial operation in October 1986. The New England portion of the
interconnection was constructed at a total cost of about $140 million, of which 3.65% or $5 million is
MMWEC's share to support. MMWEC also entered into similar agreements for participation in the
interconnection between New England utilities and the Hydro-Quebec electric system for the
expansion of the Hydro-Quebec interconnection (Phase IT) which went into commercial operation in
November 1990, MMWEC's Phase II equity investment approximates 0.6% or $3.3 million.
MMWEC has corresponding agreements with certain of its members and another utility to recover
MMWEC 's share of the costs associated with the interconnection.

-16-
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(6) Commitments and Contingencies (continued)

Power Sales Agreements
MMWEC sells the Project Capability of each of its Projects to its members and other
utilities (Project Participants) under PSAs.

In 1988, the Vermont Supreme Court ruled that the Project No. 6 PSAs between
MMWEC and the Vermont Project Participants were void since inception. Consequently, pursuant to
the PSAs, MMWEC increased the remaining Project No. 6 Participants pro rata shares of Project
Capability to cover the shortfall (step-up), which action was challenged by certain Massachusetts
Participants. The Supreme Judicial Court for the Commonwealth of Massachusetts in MMWEC et.
al. v. Town of Danvers et. al. noted that "the Project 6 PSAs executed by the defendants are valid and
that the step-up provisions therein have been properly invoked".

Inasmuch as the Stony Brook Intermediate Project has approximately 8.2% of its
Project Capability under PSAs with Vermont entities, which PSAs are virtually identical to the
Project No. 6 PSA, MMWEC sought a declaratory judgment and received a Vermont Supreme Court
opinion which upheld the validity of the Vermont Participants' Intermediate Unit Project PSAs.

Consolidated with the Danvers case noted above, two Massachusetts systems also sued
MMWEC over MMWEC 's termination of a Sellback Agreement MMWEC had with PSNH (Sellback
Damages Claims). The Massachusetts Appeals Court affirmed MMWEC's summary judgment
granted by the Superior Court on five of seven counter claims related to the Sellback Damages
Claims. MMWEC sought and received further appellate review and the Massachusetts Supreme
Judicial Court is scheduled to hear arguments in April, 1995 on whether the Appeals Court erred in
reversing the Superior Court on (1) whether MMWEC made certain representations to two Project
Participants regarding the Sellback Agreement and (2) whether those two Project Participants
reasonably relied on such representations in entering into the Project No. 6 PSAs.

The former Vermont Project No. 6 Participants, through various court actions, sought
restitution of $6.1 million paid to MMWEC prior to their PSAs being declared void. MMWEC paid
the $6.1 million to the former Vermont Project No. 6 Participants through satisfaction of a Vermont
Superior Court judgment against MMWEC and settlement of a Vermont Federal Court action.
MMWEC is recovering said amount through billings to the Project No. 6 Participants. One of the
Project No. 6 Participants has paid its monthly billings in full but is challenging the allocation of such
costs to Project No. 6 by seeking arbitration, as provided for within the PSA. Another Project No. 6
Participant is withholding its share of the monthl; billings relating to the amount paid, and has also
filed for arbitration. @MMWEC is seeking a contempt of court order, to enforce a prior court
injunction, which ordered said Project Participart to make all Project payments when due.

7



DECEMBER 31,1994, 1993 AND 1992
(6)  Commitments and Contingencies (continued)

Power Sales Agreements (continued)
Based on bond counsels' opinions regarding the validity of the Power Sales
Agreements and general counsel representations regarding the litigation, discussions with such
counsel, aud other considerations, management believes that the ultimate resolution of the actions
described above will not have a material, adverse effect on the financial position of MMWEC.

Qther Issues

In August 1988, an amendment to the Price-Anderson Act was enacted, calling for a
fifteen year extension of the nuclear liability indemnification process. The Act now provides
apprr~imately $9.4 billion for public liability claims from a single incident at a nuclear facility. The
$200 million primary layer of insurance for the liability has been purchased in the commercial
market. Secondary coverage of $8.8 billion is to be provided through a $75.5 million per incident
assessment of each of the currently licensed nuclear units in the United States. The maximum
assessment is $10 million per incident per unit in any year. If the sum of the liability claims and costs
from an incident exceed the maximum amount of financial protection, each reactor owner is subject to
an additional $3.8 million assessment. The maximum assessment is subject to adjustment for inflation
every five years. MMWEC's interest in Millstone Unit 3 and Seabrook Station could result in a
maximum assessment of $3.6 and $8.8 million, respectively.

Insurance has been purn from Nuclear Electric Insurance Limited (NEIL) to
cover the cost of repair, replacement, de. .itamination or premature decommissioning of utility
property resulting from insured occurrences at Millstone Unit 3 and Seabrook Station. MMWEC is
subject to a $1 million assessment for its participation in Millstone Unit 3 and Seabrook Station for
excess property damage, decontamination and decommissioning, as well as retroactive assessments if
losses exceed the financial resources available to NEIL.

MMWEC is not currently covered under gradual pollution liability insurance related
to MMWEC's Stony Brook power plant. Nothing has come to management's attention concerning
any material pollution liability claims made during 1994 or outstanding as of December 31, 1994,

MMWEC has established a trust fund to enhance its Directors' and Officers’ liability
coverage. The purpose of the fund is to make available funds for the purchase of Directors’ and
Officers' liability insurance or indemnification of the Directors or Officers.
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(7N Investments and Deposits

All bank deposits, which amounted to $313,000 at December 31, 1994, are maintained
at one financial institution. The Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation currently insures up to
$100,000 per depositor. MMWEC's uninsured deposits ranged from zero to $2.9 million during
1994 due to seasonal cash flows, and the timing of daily cash receipts. At December 31, 1994
investments are ciassified as available for sale and reported at fair value with unrealized gains of
$208,000 and unrealized losses of $2.3 million excluded from earnings and reported as a
component of Amounts Recoverable Under the Terms of the Power Sales Agreement on the
Statements of Financial Position. At December 31, 1993 and 1992, investments are stated at cost
adjusted for accretion (amortization) of the discount (premium). At December 31, 1994, all securities
underlying repurchase agreements, and all other investments, were held in MMWEC's name by
independent custodians consisting of the Construction Fund Trustees, Bond Fund Trustee or
MMWEC's depository bank. Investments, representing the Special Funds and Cash and Temporary
Investments, as well as certain additional amounts disbursed but available for investment, and accrued
interest, are presented below:

1994 1993 1992
Amortized Market Amortized Market Amortized Market
(In Thousands)

Repurchase Agreements § 5,826 $ 5806 § 2735 § 2893 § 2219 § 2289
Other Investments:

U.S. Treasury bills 2,775 2,878 15 15 65 65
U.S. Treasury notes 77,250 75,090 97282 101,090 84 681 87,257
U.S. Agency bonds 9,311 9,277 16,514 16,958 18,446 19,240
U.S. Agency

discount notes 92,029 91,990 76,824 76,832 96,758 96,762

Investment in Government

Mutual Funds - - 42 42 - -
Total Other Investments _181.365 190,478 _ 194937 _199.950

Total Investments $187191 $185.31 §193210 §I97.830 $202.109 $205.013

During 1994, the proceeds from the sale of available for sale securities were $10.1
million resulting in gross realized gains of $273,000 and gross realized losses of $2,000. The basis
on which cost was determined in computing realized gain or loss was specific identification.
Including repurchase agreements, the average contractual maturity of the investments in debt
securities at December 31, 1994 was 545 days.

Temporary investments, made up of funds available from amounts for which the
expense has been recognized but not cleared by the bank, approximate $1.8, $.8 and $2.2 million in
1994, 1993 and 1992, respectively, and are included in the total investments noted above.
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) Investments and Deposits (continued)

Due to seasonal cash flows during 1994, 1993 and 1992, MMWEC, from time to
time, invested in repurchase agreements with its depository bank that were collateralized by securities
in MMWEC's name held by the depository bank. MMWEC's practice is to monitor the market value
of the underlying securities to ensure that the market value equals or exceeds the amount invested.
Management estimated market values of the securities based on independent quoted market prices.

8) Eair Values of Financial Instruments

The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair value of each
class of financial instrument for which it is practicable to estimate that value:

Iovestments and Decommissioning Trusts - The fair values estimated are based on
quoted market prices for those or similar investments.

Long-Term Debt - The fair value is estimated based on quoted market prices for the
same or similar issues.

laterest Rate Protection Agreement - The fair value is based on average quoted market
prices of agreements with similar duration and strike prices.

Debt Service Forward Delivery Agreement - The fair value generally reflects the
estimated amounts that MMWEC would receive or pay to terminate the contracts at the reporting
date, thereby taking into account the current unrealizea gains or losses of open contracts.

The estimated fair values of MMWEC's financial instruments are as follows:

1994 1993 1992
Carrying Estimated Carrying Estimated Carrying Estimated

(In Thousands)
Financial Assets:
Investments $ 185,131 § 185,131 § 193213 § 197,830 § 202,1698% 205613
Decommissioning Trusts 6,110 5,609 4,683 4,682 3,423 3,356
Interest Rate Protection
Agreement. 709 581 - . :
Financial Liabilities:
Long-Term Debt 1,341,200 1,235,800 1,374,605 1,436,100 1,376,700 1,391,600
Unrecognized Financial
Instruments:
Debt Service Forward
Delivery Agreement - 270 - - . -

The carrying amounts for Cash, Accounts Receivable, Notes Payable, Accounts
Payable and Accrued Expenses approximate their fair value due to the short-term nature of these
instruments.
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One Boston Place Telephone 617 723 7700 Telefax 617 723 6864
Boston, MA 02108-4563

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

The Board of Directors
Massachusetts Municipal Wholesale Electric Company

We have audited and reported separately herein on the financial statements of
Massachusetts Municipal Wholesale Electric Company as of and for the years ended December
31, 1994, 1993 and 1992.

Our audits were made for the purpose of forming an opinion on the basic financial
statements of the Massachusetts Municipal Wholesale Electric Company taken as a whole.
The supplementary information included in Schedules I through III is presented for purposes of
additional analysis and is not a required part of the basic financial statements. Such
supplementary information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit
of the basic financial statements and, in our opinion, is fairly stated in all material respects in
relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole.

March 10, 1995
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YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1994
(In Thousands)
NUCLEAR NUCLEAR NUCLEAR NUTLEAR PROJECT BYDRO QUEBEC
SERVICE MIX!  PROJL3 PROJL4 PROJLS  NO.6  PEAKING INTERMEDIATE WYMAN  PHASE Nl _ TOTAL _
Revenues $ 692 §$ 14695 § 20247 $ 2851 § 2039 § &219 $ 70m $ 28537 $ 1,493 $ 605 $ 213%10
Interest income 775 %0 1361 169 22 4820 347 2020 R __L519 — 98 _ 11,19
Total Revenues and Interest Income  § 63,737 § 15685 § 21608 § 20830 § 8527 § 65066 § 7684 5 2005 $ 155 § 70 s
Opersting and Service Expenses
Fuel Used in Electne Generstion s S 73 0% 132§ 1818 § 479 §$ 3093 § 578 $ 7.8 $ 395 $ - s 16,359
Purchased Power 61,335 - - - - - - - - 605 61,940
Other Opersting 228 2,051 3,646 5,335 1,376 14,596 1,145 4,761 308 - 35,500
Marntenance 43 634 1,109 2.0m 526 2,87 263 2,119 108 - 9,746
Depreciation 65 1,910 4,045 9,251 2.5 17,888 2,257 6,191 27 - 44,366
Taxes Other Then Income . e 00 23 1,184 W0 10 00 W Loms 140 S 3 51»
7 S 10408 19665 5213 40093 4,634 _ 21,91 LI - - 11,050
Interest Expense:
Interest Charges Kl 7.555 11,775 14,612 4,502 33,640 2,52 6.561 308 - 81,489
Interest Charged to Projects
During Construction : s — 8 03 ____ 8 _ 0 it - et il R CRCTLAT
4 1551 1L 14606 @ 450 2 BN W 252 __ 5,561 .. 30 — __ 81453
Total Opersting Costs and
Interest E xpence 63,737 13081 20% 2 M2 N3 MIR | 7,166 28,552 1486 605 254,503
Cowt (Gmin) of Advance Refunding - Net - 912 1,903 896 (586) 10,895 39 {1,136) 57 - 12,902
Gain on Cancelled Units - Net et ottt Boeelyy L B I e L et e T e N —— . ®©
- o m 1,93 84 @ (587) w08z (39 ___{1,136) I | BRI 12,89
Decrease {Increase) in Amounts
Recoversbie Under the Power Sales
Agreements due to excess of Expenses
(Revenues) over Revenues (Expernses) - 162 Q465  (5,335) _ (599) _ (18,948) 557 ___ 2,640 i — __ (22,350)
63,737 § 15685 § 21608 § 29830 § 8527 § 65666 § 7.684 $ 30,056 $ 1,553 $ 703 $ 245049
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YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1994
(In Thousands)

NUCLEAR NUCLEAR NUCLEAR NUCLEAR PROJECT HYDRO QUEBEC
SERVICE MIX1  PROJ3  PROJL4  PROLS _ NO.6  PEAKING INTERMEDIATE WYMAN  PHASEN  TOTAL
Cash flows from opersting sctivities:
Total Revenues and interest Income $ 63737 § 15685 § 21608 § 2983¢ § 83527 § 65666 § 7,684 $ 3095 $ 1553 s 703 $ 245049
Total Costs and Expenscs, net (83,737 {13,993 (24.073) (35,165) 9.126) (84.614) 1127 27.416) (1,543 i605) (267,399)
Adjustments to arrive st net cash
provided (used) by opersting sctivities:
Deprecmtion and Decommumsionmg 65 .07 4362 9.486 2,592 18,214 2,243 6,120 27 45,387
Amortzation - L0119 1,592 .1 627 392 12 456 13 9.922
Write off of Debt Discount and Expenses L4 1.72% 1.847 193 4475 167 488 126 - 10,440
Change i current asscts and linbilitses:
Accounts Recervabie 1,301 93 190 740 155 1,216 89 » 2 o 433
Unbilied Revenues 2,709 - - - - - - - - . 2,709
inventones - 3 - 7 18 * 269 (1.324) 1n2 (751
Prepard Expenses 16 39 s 403 102 550 - 1] ol 23
Accounts Peysbie (306) ” 9 274 65 57 36 (604) 17 23 193
Accrued Expenscs and Other (1,910) (349) 97 (486) (130) 2,045 3 (464) 36) (2.029)
Memmber and Partscpant Advances
el Bovervoa RUC N ) 20 @) on  es%) v ) & (3 w3
Net cash provided by (used for)
speratng activttics Q2164 6329 673 8953 295 S5 3493 2 1311 564 - .77
Construction Expenditures and
Purchases of Nuclear Fuel (185 (630) (1,207 (650) (165) (901) a9 (499) 2%) {4,281)
Interest Chargad 1o Projects
Durng ©onstruction - ) 13 %) (¥4) (n - - - . 36)
Net Incremse (Decrense) in Special Funds 231 2,737 12 (197 (290) 2811 M 1.608 66 " 8,269
Net Unrealized Loss on Specisl Funds m “12) a2 (308) (96) 679) m (153) ® - (2,059
Decommissionng Trust Pavments - s (454) am) an (386) . - - (.4m
Other P RTINS G (R, | N N .8 W - - 45
Net cash provided by (used for}
mvesting sctivitics 2204 | 1LS515 @239 0 (1,3%)  (613) %M 0 (369) 99 ) 14 RS—— |
Proceeds from Sale of Bonds 102,738 73,155 102,570 7,605 119,260 9,100 10,655 7.300 432,380
Payments for Bond lasse Conts .19 (.76 Qe (sm (2.580) (104) (12%5) {34) (10.482)
Payments ¢ Principal of Long- Term Debt 2.820) (2,630) (3.640) (1.460) (16,665) (2.805) (6,420} (85) (30.52%)
Pavments for Defensance of Bonds - {105,650) (73,180) (103.870) (8,360) (111,445) 9.215) (12,4200 (7.760) 3 (432,000)
Change in Notes Paysble e RN - AR, I . N} R I ]
Net cash used for financing activitics 68 (O @3y (.55 Q3T (6430 (3,129 @330 ___15%9) .y ___(40,691)
Net (decrease) in cash and
temporery v estments (24) - & 24
Cash snd Temporary Investmends
ot Brgmning of Year B e e S e RN SRS (| TP il e
Cash and Temporary Investments
ot End of Year 3 91 3 5 3 1 § s i 3 s $ A4 $ 989
(Net of amount capitatized s shown sb S 4§ 7035 5L 5 13906 § 4284 § 32301 5 238 5 6067  § M 0§ 5 7sm
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OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934
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Jtewm 1. Business

General

Canal Electric Company (the Company) is a wholesale electric generating
company organized in 1902 under the laws of the Commonwealth of Massachu-
setts. The Company assumed its present corporate name in 1966 after the
sale to an affiliated companv of its electric distribution and transmission
properties together with the right to do business in the territories served.
The Company is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Commonwealth Energy System
(*System”), which together with its subsidiaries is collectively referred to
as *the system."

The Company’'s gensrating ctation is located in Sandwich, Massachusetts
at the eastern end of the Cape Cod Canal. The station consists of two eil-
fired steam electric generating units: Canal Unit 1, with a rated capacity
of 569 MW, wholly-owned by the Company; and Canal Unit 2, with a rated
capacity of 570 MW, jointly-owned by the Company and Montaup Electric
Company (Montaup) (an unaffiliated company). Canal Unit 2 is operated by
the Company under an agreement with Montaup which provides for the egual
sharing of output, fixed charges and operating expenses. Canal Units 1 and
2 commenced operation in 1968 and in 1976, respectively.

The Company alsoc has a 3.52% interest in the Seabrook 1 nuclear power
plant located in Seabrook, New Hampshire, to provide for a portion of the
capacity and energy needs of Cambridge Electric Light Company (Cambridge)
and Commonwealth Electric Company (Commonwealth Electric), each of which are
retail distribution companies and wholly-owned subsidiaries of the System.
The plant has a rated capacity of 1,150 Mw.

For additional information pertaining to the Company's relationship with
the system’'s retail distribution companies, together with more extensive
information on the Company’'s participation in the Seabrook plant and on
other sources of power procurement, refer to the *Power Contracts" and
*Power Supply Commitments and Support Agreements® sections of this Item 1.

ew and we 00

The Company, together with other electric utility companies in the New
England area, is a member of the New England Power Pocol (NEPOOL), which was
formed in 1971 to provide for the joint planning and operation of electric
systems throughout New England.

NEPOOL operates a centralized dispatching facility to ensure reliability
of service and to dispatch the most economically available generating units
of the member companies to fulfill the region’s energy requirements. This
concept is accomplished by use of crmputers to monitor and forecast load
requirements. In the past, this has required that Canal Unit 1 operate
whenever possible since it is one of the most efficient oil-fired units in
the country. Canal Unit 2 is designed for cycling operation which provides



CANAL ELECTRIC COMPANY

for economic changes in unit load permitting reduced generation during
nights and weekends when demand is lowest. It has perfcrmed as one of New
England’s most efficient units in this type of service.

The Company and the System's other electric subsidiaries are also
members of the Northeast Power Coordinating Council (NPCC), an advisory
organization which includes the major power systems in New England and New
York plus the provinces of Ontario and New Brunswick in Canada. NPCC
establishes criteria and standards for reliability and serves as a vehicle
for coordination in the planning and operation of these systems.

Regulation

The Company is a *public utility*® within the meaning of Part II of the
Federal Power Act and is subject to regulations thereunder by the FERC as to
rates, accounting and other matters. The Company is subject to regulation
by the DPU as to the issuance of securities.

Fuel Supply
(a) 0il

Effective July 1, 1993, the Company executed a twenty-two month contract
with Coastal 0il New England, Inc. (Coastal) for the purchase of residual
fuel oil. The contract provides for delivery of a set percentage of the
Company's fuel requirement, the balance (a maximum of 20%) to be met by spot
purchases or by Coastal at the discretion of the Company. Through December
1994, approximately 15.6% of the Company’'s total requirements have been met
by lower-cost spot purchases resulting in savings to its customers.

Energy Supply and Credit Corporation (ESCO Massachusetts, Inc.) operates
the Company’'s oil terminal and manages the purchase, receipt and payment of
0il under assignment of the Company’s supply contracts to ESCO Massachu-
setts, Inc. 0il in the terminal’s shore tanks is held in inventory by ESCO
Massachusetts, Inc. and delivered upon demand to the Company'’'s day tanks.

Fuel oil storage facilities at the Canal site have a capacity of
1,199,000 barrels, representing approximately 60 days of normal operatic- of
the two units. During 1994, ESCO maintained an average daily inventory of
575,000 barrels of fuel oil which represents 30 days of normal operation of
the two units. This supply is maintained by tanker deliveries approximately
every ten to fifteen days.

For a discussion on the cost of fuel oil, refer to *Management’s
Discussion and Analysis of Results of Operations® filed under Item 7 of this
report.

(b) Nuclear Fuel

The nuclear fuel contract and inventory information for Seabrook 1 T as
been furnished to the Company by North Atlantic Energy Services Corporation
(NAESCO), the plant manager responsible for operation of the unit.
Seabrook’s requirement for nuclear fuel components are 100% covered through
1999 by existing contracts.
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There are no spent fuel reprocessing or disposal facilities currently
operating in the United States. Instead, commercial nuclear electric gener-
ating units operating in the United States are required to retain high level
wastes and spent fuel on-site. As required by the Nuclear Waste Policy Act
of 1982 (the Act), as amended, the joint-owners entered into a contract with
the Department of Energy for the transportation and disposal of spent fuel
and high level radioactive waste at a national nuclear waste repository or
Monitcred Retrievable Storage (MRS) facility. Owners or jenerators of spent
nuclear fuel or its associated wastes are required to bear all of the costs
for such transportation and disposal through payment of a fee of
approximately 1 mill/KWH based on net electric generation to the Nuclear
Waste Fund. Under the Act, a temporary storage facility for nuclear waste
was anticipated to be in operation by 1998; a reassessment of the project'’'s
schedule requires extending the completion date of the permanent facility
until at least 2010. Seabrook 1 is currently licensed for enough on-site
storage to accommodate all spent fuel expected to be accumulated through at
lezst the year 2010.

we o

The Company is a party to substantially identical life-of-the-unit power
contracts with Boston Edison Company, Montaup Electric Company and New
England Power Company (unaffiliated utilities), under which each is
severally obligated to purchase one-quarter of the capacity and energy of
canal Unit 1. Commonwealth Electric and Cambridge are jointly obligated to
purchase the remaining one-quarter of the unit’'s capacity and energy.
Similar contracts are in effect between the Company and Commonwealth
Electric and Cambridge under which those companies are jointly obligated to
purchase the Company's entire share of the capacity and energy of Canal Unit
2. The price of power is based on a twc-part rate consisting of a demand
charge and an energy charge. The demand charge covers all expenses except
fuel costs and includes recovery of the original investment. It also
provides for any adjustments to that investment over the economic lives of
the units. The energy charge is based on the cost of fuel and is billed to
each purchaser in proportion to its purchase of power. Purchasers are
billed monthly. The power contracts are on file with the FERC.

The Company acts as agent for Commonwealth Electric and/or Cambridge in
the procurement of additional capacity, or, to sell a portion of each
company’'s entitlement in Unit 2. Exchange agreements are in place with
several utilities whereby, in certain circumstances, it is possible to
exchange capacity so that the mix of power improves the pricing for dispatch
for both the seller and purchaser. Commonwealth Electric and Cambridge thus
secure cost savings for their respective customers by planning for bulk
power supply on a single system basis. A Capacity Acquisition and
Disposition Agreement, which has been accepted for filing as a rate schedule
by the FERC, enables the Company to recover costs incurred in connection
with any transaction covered by such Agreement. Commonwealth Electric and
cambridge, in turn, bill charges to retail customers through rates subject
to DPU regulation. Currently, Agreements are in effect for Seabrook 1, '
Phase I and Phase II of the Hydro-Quebec Project, varying amounts of power
acquired from Northeast Utilities (NU), a 50 MW exchange with Central
Vermont Public Service and a 50 MW exchange with New England Power Company
through April 1997.
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In response to solicitations by NU and other utilities, the Company, on
behalf of Commonwealth Electric and Cambridge, purchased entitlements
through short-term contracts in various selected generating units. The
contracts with NU covered the purchase of varying amounts of power throujh
October 1994. These and other bulk electric power purchases are necessary
in order to fulfill the system’s NEPOOL obligation and for the Company to
acquire and deliver electric generating capacity to meet Commonwealth
Electric and Cambridge requirements. For additional information, refer to
*Transactions with Affiliates® in Note 1 of Notes to Financial Statements
and to *Management ‘s Discussion and Analysis of Results of Operations® filed
under Items 8 and 7, respectively, of this report.

Y
The Compan’ is party to support agreements for Phase I and Phase II of

Vg;; ydiv-guendc Project and is thereby obligated to pay its share of

operating and capital costs for Phase II over a 25 year period ending in
2015. Future minimum lease payments for Phase II have an estimated present
value of $13.8 million at December 31, 1994. 1In addition, the Company has
an equity interest in Phase II which amounted to $3.8 million in 1994 and
$3.9 million in 1993.

st tio d F

Information concerning the Company’'s financing and construction programs
is contained in Note 5 of Notes to Financial Statements filed under Item 8
of this report.

viro nt t

The Company is subject to laws and regulations administered by feceral,
state and local authorities relating to the guality of the environment.
These laws and regulations affect, among other things, the siting and
operation of generating facilities, and will continue to impact future
operations, capital costs and construction schedules.

The federal Clean Air Act, as amended, and certain state laws and
regulations impose restrictions on air emissions. Some of these
restrictions will become effective in 1995, and others by the year 2000. As
part of its emission reduction program, the Company has been burning more
lower-sulphur content fuel oil. 1In addition, in October 1993, the Company
reached an agreement with Montaup Electric Company (50% owner of Unit 2) and
Algonguin Gas Transmission Company to build a natural gas pipeline that will
serve Unit 2, subject to regulatory approvals. Unit 2 will be modified to
burn gas in addition to oil. The project will improve air gquality on Cape
Cod, enable the plant to exceed the stringent 1995 air quality standards
established by the Massachusetts D:partment of Environmental Protection and
will alsc strengthen the Compzny’s bargaining position as it seeks to secure
the lowest-cost fuel for its customers. Plant conversion and pipeline
construction are expected to ke completed in 1996.

Following the issuance of an environmental consent order in May 19893,
the plant was subject to an intensive 26 week review by the Massachusetts
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Department of Environmental Protection. The on-site inspection of the plant
ended in December 1993, with the plant meeting all state requirements. The

plant will remain under state supervision and will be subject to unannounced
emissions checks in order to ensure that the highest standards of air
guality are maintained.

Employees

The Company has 125 regular employees, 88 (70%) are represented by the
Utility Workers' Union of America, A.F.L.-C.I.0. The existing collective
bargaining agreement expires on May 31, 1997. Employee relations have
generally been satisfactory.

Item 2. Properties

The Company operates a generating station located at the eastern end of
the Cape Cod Canal in Sandwich, Massachusetts. The station consists of two
oil-fired steam electric generating units: Canal Unit 1 with a rated
capacity of 569 MW, wholly-owned by the Company; and Canal Unit 2, with a
rated capacity of 580 MW, jointly-owned by the Company and Montaup Electric
Company, & wholly-owned subsidiary of Eastern Utilities Associates. In
addition, the Company has a 3.52% joint-ownership interest (40.5 MW of
capacity) in Seabrook 1. Refer to Note 3 of Notes to Financial Statements
filed under Item 8 of this report for encumbrances relative to the Company's

property.

Item 3. Legal Proceedings

The Company is subject to legal claims and matters arising from its
normal course of business, including its ownership interest in the Seabrook

plant.
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PART II.

Item - ist g toc elat tockholde
Matters

(a) Principal Market

Not applicable. The Company is a whelly-owned subsidiary of
Commonwealth Energy System.

(b) Number of Shareholders at December 31, 1994

One
(c) n t o v s [ ed in 94 and 1993
1994 1993
Per Share ' Per Share
Declaration Date ~ _Amount = Declaration Date = = _Amount
April 25, 199% $ 2.00 January 28, 1993 $ 4.35
July 18, 1994 2.00 April 26, 1983 2.65
October 24, 1994 3.00 July 26, 1993 2.62
§ 7.00 October 18, 1993 2.50
December 29, 1993 8.54

$20.66

Reference is made to Note 6 of Notes to Financial Statements filed
under Item 8 of this report for restrictions against the payment of
cash dividends.

(d) Future dividends may vary depending upon the Company’'s earnings and
capital requirements as well as financial and other conditions
existing at that time.
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Item 7. Management‘s Discussion and Analysis of Results of Operations

The following is a discussion of certain significant factors which
have affected operating revenues, expenses and net income during the periocds
included in the accompanying statements of income and is presented to
facilitate an understanding of the results of operations. This discussion
should be read in conjunction with the Notes to Financial Statements filed
ander Item 8 of this report.

A sunmary of the period to period changes in the principal items
included in the statements of income for the years ended December 31, 1994 and
1993 is shown below:

Years Ended Years Ended
December 31, December 31,
1994 and 1993 1993 and 1992

Increase (Decrease)
(Dollars in Thou;;nda)

Electric Operating Revenues $( 4 674) (2.3)%8 § (18 605) (8.4)%
Operating Expenses:
Fuel used in production (760) (0.9) (13 324) (13.9)
Electricity purchased for resale (350) (1.2) (870) (3.0)
Other cperation and maintenance (1 998) (5.2) (1 561) (3.9)
Depreciation 178 1.3 (1 658) (11.0)
Taxes -

Federal and state income (503) £5.7) (2 856) (24.3)

Local property and other 12 0.3 (568) (13.9)

(3 _421) (1.9) (20 837) (10.5)

Operating lncome (1 253) (5.0) 2 232 9.8
Other Income {163) (54.3) (5 _479) (94.8)
Income Before Interest Charges (1 416) (5.6) (3 247) (11.4)
Interest Charges (452) (4.4) 978 10.6
Net Income $ (364) (6.4) $ (4 225) (19.6)
Unit Sales Decrease (MWH) (85 _345) (1.9) (1 076 _059) (21.8)

The following is a summary of unit sales for the periods indicated:

Unit Sales (MWH)

Period Ended Seabrook Purchased
Unit 1 Unit 2  _Unit 1 For Resale = Totai
1994 2 594 406 1 047 214 218 560 477 506 4 337 €56
1993 2 382 716 1 275 305 318 6594 446 316 4 423 031
1992 3 173 €68 1 590 €43 273 859 460 920 S 499 090"
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Revenue, Fuel and Purchased Powexr

Operating revenues for 1994 declined by approximately $4.7 million or
2.3% due to a 1.9% decrease in unit sales. The decrease in unit sales was
caused primarily by the reduced availability of Seabroock 1 due to the timing
of a scheduled refueling outage which began in early April and was extended
through early August 1994 for unscheduled maintenance. Somewhat offsetting
the decline was an increase in purchases made on behalf of affiliated retail
distribution companies. Also reflected in the change in unit sales was the
increased availability of Unit 1 that was offset by the decline in
generation from Unit 2 due to scheduled and unscheduled maintenance on the
both Units.

During 1993, operating revenues decreased by $18.6 million or 8.4% due
primarily to a 21.8% decrease in unit sales due to the timing of scheduled
maintenance on Units 1 and 2, the operation of the units at reduced capacity
during emissions testing and a decrease in the level of short-term purchases
on behalf of affiliated retail distribution companies. A contributing
factor to the decrease was the impact of the excess capacity situation which
exists in New England. Somewhat offsetting the decline in unit sales was an
increase in power available from Seabrook 1.

Fuel, purchased power and transmission costs (included in other
operation) represented approximately 57% of the total revenue dollar in
1994, 56% in 1993 and 58% in 1992 and averaged 2.68 cents per KWH in 1994 as
compared to 2.58 cents in 1993 and 2.33 cents in 1992. The per barrel cost
of oil averaged $14.33 in 1994, $14.02 in 1993 and $12.95 in 1992. 1In
conformance with restrictions on air emissions, the Commonwealth of
Massachusetts mandated a reduction in sulphur dioxide emissions requiring
the periodic use of more expensive lower-sulphur (1%) content oil. 1In 1994,
1% 0il averaged $14.92 per barrel as compared to $15.16 per barrel in 1993
$17.25 per barrel in 1992. However, lower-sulphur oil displaced 70.4% of
the higher sulphur (2.2%) content oil in 1994, as compared to 57.5% and 24%
in 1993 and 19%2, respectively.

Oth ratin enses

Other operation includes the following:

_Years Ended December 31, _
1994 1993 1992
(Dollars in millions)
Other operation: $24.7 $23.7 $27.0
Less:

Seabrock 1 operations 4.3 4.6 5.7
Hydro-Quebec Phase Il transmission 3.5 3.8 39
Power purchased from affiliates 1.3 0.8 2.6
$15.6 $14.8 15.2

pfter excluding the items noted above, other operation, net, increased
approximately $800,000 or 5.4% in 1994 and decreased 2.6% in 1993. The
significant changes in power purchased from affiliates were due to a damaged

e 1D »



CANAL ELECTRIC COMPANY

Unit 1 service station transformer from July 1991 through February 1992
which regquired the Company to buy power normally generated at the plant and
a refund ($594,000) received in 1993 reflecting an overbilling which had
occurred in December 1992. The refund was passed back to the Company's
customers in 1993 and produced a correspending reduction to revenues.

The decrease in maintenance expense in 1994 was due primarily to the
timing of maintenance on Unit 1 and the major overhaul of Unit 2 which
occurred in 1993. The increase in maintenance expense in 1993 reflects the
timing of a scheduled inspection and overhaul of the Unit 2 boiler, turbine
and generator.

Depreciation and Taxes

The 1.3% increase in depreciation expense in 1994 was due to a higher
level of plant-in-service. Depreciation expense decreased 11%, or
approximately $1.7 million, during 1993 due to a revision to accrual rates
used in determining depreciation expense and an extension of the depreciable
life of Unit 1 from 1996 to 2002, resulting from a study conducted as of
December 31, 1992.

The 5.7% decrease in income tax expense (approximately $503,000) during
1994 was due to a lower level of pretax income. Income tax expense
decreased approximately $2.9 million or 24.3% in 1993 due to a significantly
lower level of pretax income offset, somewhat, by an increase in the federal
income tax rate to 35%, retroactive to January 1, 1993. Local property and
other taxes were virtually unchanged for 1994 reflecting the impact of
slightly higher property tax rates ($73,000) being offset by a decrease in
payroll-related taxes ($61,000). The decrease in local property and other
taxes during 1993 reflects lower rates and a refund (approximately $300,000)
associated with revisions to the nuclear station property tax assessed by
the state of New Hampshire to the joint-owners of Seabrook.

Other CO

During 1994 other income decreased due primarily to lower equity
earnings ($67,000) related to the Company’'s investment in Hydro-Quebec. The
significant decrease in other income during 1993 was due tc the absence of:
1) an equity component of allowance for funds used during construction
(AFUDC) resulting from an adjustment to reflect the 1992 FERC settlement
which finalized recovery of the Company's investment in Seabrook 1; 2)
interest income related to contested tax issues; and 3) the reversal of a
reserve related to the Company’'s Seabrook investment which was determined to
be fully recoverable pursuant to the aforementioned FERC settlement.

Interest Charges

Total interest charges decreased 4.4% during 1994 reflecting a decrease
in long-term interest ($984,000) due to the early redemption of the
Company’'s Series D, 11.125% First Mortgage Bonds due in 2007. Somewhat
offsetting the decrease in long-term interest was an increase in other
interest charges ($427,000) caused by a higher average level of short-term
borrowings coupled with higher short-term interest rates. Interest rates on

» I% -
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bank borrowings averaged 4.3% during 1994 as compared to 3.4% for 1993.
Total interest charges increased 10.6% during 1993 due to a significantly
lower level of debt AFUDC reflecting the 1992 FERC Seabrook settlement,
lower levels of short-term debt and lower interest rates.

Early Retirement of Debt

On December 1, 1993, the Company redeemed its Series D, 11.125% First
Mortgage Bonds due December 1, 2007 totaling $5.3 million with short-term
borrowings. The Company paid a premium of $279,000 on this early redemption
and will amortize this amount to expense over the remaining original life of
the retired issue.

Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data

The Company‘s financial statements required by this item are filed
herewith on pages 13 through 31 of this report.

Item 9. C s d e s t ccountants o ccount
and Financial Disclosure
None

- 1% &
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Item 8. FEinancia) Statements and Supplementary Data
C ACC
Tec Canal Electric Company:

We have audited the accompanying balance sheets of CANAL ELECTRIC
COMPANY, (a Massachusetts corporation and wholly-owned subsidiary of
Commonwealth Energy System) as of December 31, 1994 and 1993, and the related
statements of income, retained earnings and cash flows for each of the three
years in the period ended December 31, 1994. These financial statements and
the schedule referred to below are the responsibility of the Company'’s
management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial
statements and schedule based on our audits.

wWe conducted our audits in accordance with generally accepted auditing
standards. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to
obtain reascnable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of
material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence
supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit
also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant
estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial
statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis
for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present
fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of Canal Electric
Company as of December 31, 1994 and 1993, and the results of its operations
and its cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December
31, 1994, in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles.

As discussed in Note 7 to the financial statements, effective January 1,
1993, the Comparny changed its method of accounting for costs associated with
postretirement benefits other than pensions.

Our audits were made for the purpoce of forming an opinion on the basic
financial statements taken as a whole. The schedule listed in the index to
financial statements and schedules is presented for purposes of complying with
the Securities and Exchange Commission’s rules and is not part of the basic
financial statements. This schedule has been subjected to tane auditing
procedures applied in the audits of the basic financial statements and, in our
opinion, fairly states, in all material respects, the financial data required
to be set forth therein in relation to the basic financial statements taken as
a whole.

ARTHUR ANDERSEN LLP
Boston, Massachusetts

February 21, 1995

_



FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Balance Sheets at December 31, 1994 and 1993
statements of Income for the Years Ended December 31, 1994, 1993 and 1992

statements of Retained Earnings for the Years Ended December 31, 1994, 1993
and 1992

Statements of Cash Flows for the Years Ended December 31, 1594, 1993 and
1992

Notes to Financial Statements

SCHEDULES

I Investments In, Equity Earnings of, and Dividends Received From
Related Parties for the Years Ended December 31, 1994, 1993 and 1992

SCHEDULES OMITTED
All other schedules are not submitted because they are not applicable or

required or because the required information is included in the financial
statements or notes thereto.
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT, at original cost
Less - Accumulated depreciation
and amortization

Add - Construction work in progress
Nuclear fuel in process

LEASED PROPERTY, net

INVESTMENTS
Equity in corporate joint venture

CURRENT ASSETS

Cash

Accounts receivable -~
Affiliated companies
Other

Unbkilled revenues

Inventories, at average cost -
Electric production fuel cil
Materials and supplies

Prepaid taxes -
Income
Property

Other

DEFERRED CHARGES
Seabrook 1
Seabrook 2
Other

- 18 -

1994 1993
(Dollars in Thousands)
6409 648  $404 768
7 137 720
259 311 267 048
6 250 2 501
—139 1 641
265 700 271 190
_13 Bas  __14 150
3 802 3 861
12 12
7 935 12 215
9 100 9 549
- 659
736 663
1 408 147
132 720
932 891
1277 1 472
—21 532 __27 652
7 735 9 0C2
5 140 6 937
12 195 11 509
25 070 27 448
§320 948  $344 301



CAPITALIZATION
Common Egquity -

Common stock, $25 par value -
Authorized - 2,328,200 shares
Outstanding - 1,523,200 shares, wholly-owned
by Commonwealth Energy System (Parent)

Amounts paid in excess of par value

Retained earnings

Long-~term debt, including premiums, less
current sinking fund reguirements

CAPITAL LEASE OBLIGATIONS

CURRENT LIABILITIES
Interim Financing -
Notes payable to banks
Advances from affiliates

Other Current Liabilities -~
Current sinking fund requirements
Accounts payable -
Affiliated companies
Other
Accrued taxes -
Local property and other
Income
Capital lease obligations
Accrued interest and cther

DEFERRED CREDITS
Accumulated deferred income taxes
Unamortized investment tax credits
Other

COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

1994
(Dollars in Thousands)

1993

$ 38 080 $ 38 080
8 321 8 321

51 647 48 151
98 048 94 552
87 713 — B8 446
185 761 182 998
13 258 3 575
11 328 28 000

9 350 8 310
—20 €75 —36 310
1110 1110

1 932 1 829

14 857 15 244
977 923

71 460

586 575

4 120 3 547

23 653 23 688
44 228 59 998
68 732 70 854
12 658 13 360

6

86 601 87 730
$329 948 $344 301

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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1%%4 1883 1892
(Dollars in Thousands)

ELECTRIC OPERATING REVENUES
Sales to affiliated companies $122 310 $133 060 $144 214
Sales to non-affiliated companies 76 076 70 000 77 451

198 386 203 060 221 665

OPERATING EXPENSES

Fuel used in production 81 864 82 624 95 948
Electricity purchased for resale 27 627 27 977 28 847
Other operation 24 731 23 6%4 27 018
Maintenance 11 526 14 561 12 797
Depreciation 13 539 13 361 15 019
Amortization 3 423 3 423 3 423
Taxes -
Income 8 390 8 893 11 749
Local property 2 793 2 720 3 392
Payroll and other 729 790 686
174 622 178 043 9 80
OPERATING INCOME 23 764 5 7 22 785

OTHER INCOME
Allowance for equity funds used

during construction - - 1 827

Other, net 137 300 3 952

137 300 5 779

INCOME BEFORE INTEREST CHARGES 3 90 25 317 28 564

INTEREST CHARGES

Long~term debt 8 283 9 267 9 403

Other interest charges 1 546 289 1 791
Allowance for borrowed funds used

during ceonstruction (86) _(61) (1 _977)

9 743 10 195 9 217

NET INCOME § 14 158 § 15 122 § 19 347

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Balance at beginning of year

Add (Deduct)
Net income
Cash dividends on common stock

Balance at end of year

99

1994 1983 1992
(Dollars in Thousands)
$48 151 $64 498 $62 668
14 158 15 122 19 347
J10 662) A31 469) A17 _S17)
§51 647 §64 498

$48 151

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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CANAL ELECTRIC COMPANY
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
FOR_THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1994, 1993 AND 1992

OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net income
Effects of noncash items -
Depreciation and amortization
Deferred income taxes
Investment tax credits
Allowance for eguity funds used
during construction
Earnings from corporate joint venture
Dividends from corporate joint venture
Changs in working capital, exclusive
ci cash and interim financing -
Accounts receivable
Unbilled revenues
Prepaid (accrued) income taxes, net
Local property and other taxes, net
Accounts payable and other
All other operating items, net

Net cash provided by operating activities

INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Additions to property, plant and
equipment (exclusive of AFUDC)
Allowance for borrowed funds used
during construction

Net cash used for investing activities

FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Proceeds from (payment of)
short-term borrowings

Proceeds from affiliate borrowings

Payment of dividends

Long-term debt issue refunded

Retirement of long-term debt through
sinking funds

Net cash used for financing activities
Net increase (decrease) in cash

Cash at beginning of period
Cash at end of period

1994 1993 1992
(Dollars in Thousands)
$ 14 158 $ 15 122 $ 19 347
18 668 20 333 22 138
1 815 1 445 3 950
(702) (715) (744)
- - (1 827)
(507) (573) (620)
566 882 822
4 729 ‘(513) 1 304
€59 224 (193)
199 (990) 1 313
13 (30) (526)
485 1 603 (2 491)
3 571) (2 326) __(2 988)
36 512 34 462 39 485
(9 396) (6 574) (S 474)
(86) {61) {1 877)
(5 _482) (6 635) (7 _451)
(16 675) 8 650 (13 850)
1 040 4 590 215
(10 662) (31 469) (17 %17)
- (9 300) -
_(733) (732) (436)
(27 030) (28 261) (31 _588)
- (434) 446
— 446 -
$ ;1 $ 12 g 446

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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(1) c c t

(a) General and Regulatory

Canal Electric Company (the Company) is a wholly-owned subsidiary of
Commonwealth Energy System. The parent company is referred to in this
report as the "System” and together with its subsidiaries is referred to as
*the system.® The Company is regulated as to rates, accounting and other
matters by various authorities, including the Federal Energy Regulatory
Commission (FERC) and the Massachusetts Department of Public Utilities
(DPU). The System is an exempt holding company under the provisions of the
Public Utility Holding Company Act of 1935 and, in addition to its
investment in the Company, has interests in other utility companies and
several non-regulated companies.

The Company has established various regulatory assets in cases where
the DPU and/or the FERC have permitted or are expected to pcfmit recovery of
specific costs over time. The principal regulatory assets included in
deferred charges at December 31, 1994 and 1993 were as follows:

1994 1993
(Dollars in Thousands)

Seabrook related costs $12 648 $1S5. 774.
Deferred income taxes S 537 7 345
Postretirement benefit costs 1 242 639

Total regulatory assets $19 427 $23 758
Regulatory assets as a percent of total assets 5.9% 6.9%
(b) e 8 catio

Certain prior year amounts are reclassified from time to time to con-
form with the presentation used in the current year’'s financial statements.

(c) Transactions with Affiliates

Trarsactions between the Company and other system companies include
purchases and sales of electricity, including the Company'’'s acquisition and
resale of capacity entitlements and related energy generated by certain
units «f other New England utilities. The Company functions as the
principsl supplier of electric generation capacity for and on behalf of
affiliates Cambridge Electric Light Company (Cambridge) and Commonwealth
Electric Company (Commonwealth Electric), including abandonment and
nonconstruction costs related to the Seabrook project. In addition,
payments for management, accounting, data processing and other services are
made to affiliate COM/Energy Services Company. Transactions with other
system companies are subject to review by the FERC and the DPU.

The Company’'s operating revenues included the following intercompany

e 30 =
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amcunts for the periods indicated:

Period Ended Electricity Sales Seabrook Units
December 31, —{Canal Units) Purchased Power —ind Other
(Dollare in Thousands)
1994 $45 906 $31 288 $45 116
1993 53 174 31 77 48 109
1992 60 440 32 592 51 182
(d) Other Major Customers

The Company is a wholesale electric generating company that sells
power under life-of-the-unit contracts, approved by FERC to Boston Edison
Company, Montaup Electric Company and New England Power Company,
(unaffiliated utilities). Each utility is cobligated to purchase one-guarter
of the capacity and energy of Canal Unit 1. ;

(e) Egquity Method of Accounting

The Company uses the equity method of accounting for its 3.8% invest-
ment in the New England/Hydro-Quebec Phase II transmission facilities due in
part to its ability to exercise significant influence over operating and
financial policies of the entity. Under this method, it records as income
the proportionate share of the net earnings of this project with a corre-
sponding increase in the carrying value of the investment. The investment
amount is reduced as cash dividends are received. For further information
on this investment, refer to Schedule I in Part IV of this report.

(f) Depreciation and Nuclear Fuel Amortization

Depreciation is provided using the straight-line method at rates
intended to amortize the original cost and the estimated cost of removal
less salvage of properties over their estimated economic live:. The
Company’'s composite depreciation rate, based on average depreciable property
in service, was 3.49% in 1994, 3.47% in 1993 and 3.92% in 1992. 1In 1993,
the depreciable life of Unit 1 was extended from 1996 to 2002 and resulted
in a decrease in depreciation expense of approximately $1.7 million in that
period.

The cost of nuclear fuel is amortized to fuel expense based on the
quantity of energy produced. Nuclear fuel expense alsc includes a provision
for the costs associated with the ultimate disposal of the spent nuclear
fuel.

(g) Maintenance

Expenditures for repairs of property and replacement and renewal of
items determined to be less tha . units of property are charged to
maintenance expense. Additiors, replacements and renewals of property
considered to be units of property, are charged to the appropriate plant
accounts. Upon retirement, accumulated depreciation is charged with the
original cost of property units and the cost of removal net of salvage.

- 33 o
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(h) Allowance for Funds Used During Construction

Under applicable rate-making practices, the Company is permitted to
include an allowance for funds used during construction (AFUDC) as an
element of its depreciable property costs. This allowance is based on the
anount of construction work in progress that is not included in the rate
base on which the Company earns a return. An amount egual to the AFUDC
capitalized in the current period is reflected in the accompanying
statements of income.

While AFUDC does not provide funds currently, these amounts are
recoverable in revenues over the service life of the constructed property.
The Company develops rates based upon its current cost of capital and used a
compound rate of 5.25% in 1994, 3.75% in 1993 and 4.75% in 1992.

(2)  Income Taxes

For financial reporting purposes, the Company provides federal and
state income taxes on a separate return basis. However, for federal income
tax purposes, the Company’'s taxable income and deductions are included in
the consolidated income tax return of the System and it makes tax payments
or receives refunds on the basis of its tax attributes i: the tax return in
accordance with appliczhle regulations.

The following is a summary of the provisions for income taxes for the

years ended December :1, 1994, 1993 and 1992:

1994 1993 1992
(Dollars in Thousands)
Federal:
Current $ 6 321 $ 7 192 $ 7 636
Deferred 1 460 1 476 3 506
Investment tax credits {702) (715) (744)
7 078 7 953 10 398
State:
Current 1 138 1 181 1 147
Deferred | e i33) 1 048
1 493 1 150 2 195
8 572 9 103 12 593
Amortization of regulatory liability
relating to deferred income taxes - - (604)
Total $ 8 572 9 103 $11 985
Federal and state income taxes
charged to:
Operating expense $ 8 390 $ 8 B93 $11 749
Other income 182 —nif 240
$ .8 572 $.9 103 $11 989

Effective January 1, 1992, the Company adopted the provisions of

Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 109,
SFAS No. 109 requires recognition of deferred tax

Taxes" (SFAS No. 109).

> 23 =
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liabilities and assets for the expected future tax consequences of events
that bavw> Seen included in the financial statements or tax returns. Under
this method, deferred tax liabilities and assets are determined based on the
difference between the financial statement basis and tax basis of assets and
liabilities using enacted tax rates in effect in the year in which the
differences are expected to reverse.

Accumulated deferred income taxes consisted of the following in 1994 and
1993:

1994 1993
(Dollars in Thousands)
Liabilities
Property-related $77 587 78 571
Seabrook nenconstruction 4 504 6 017
All other 1 291 1 457
83 382 . 86 0
Assets
Investment tax credit 8 170 8 623
Regulatory liability S 189 5 189
All other 1 247 2 047
14 606 15 859
Accumulated deferred income taxes, net §68 776 570 226

The net year-end deferred income tax liability above includes a current
deferred tax liability of $44,000 and a current deferred tax asset of
$628,000 in 1994 and 1983, respectively, which are included in accrued
income taxes and prepaid income taxes, respectively, in the accompanying
balance sheets.

The total income tax provision set forth on the previous page

represents 38% of income before such taves in each year. The following
table reconciles the statutory federal income tax rate to these percentages:

1994 1993 1992

Federal statutory rate 3ss 35% 4%
Federal income tax expense at statutory levels $7 956 $8 479 $10 654
Increase (Decrease) from statutory rate:
Tax versus book depreciation 1 311 1 318 1 302
State tax, net of federal tax benefit 970 748 1 449%
Amortization of investment tax credits (689) (671) (671)
Allowance for equity funds used during
construction - - (621)
Reversals of capitalized expenses (555) (555) -
Other (421) (216) (124)
§8 572  $9 103 $11 989
Effective federal tax rate 38% 8% 38%

As a result of the Revenue Reconciliation Act of 1983, the Company’s
federal income tax rate increased to 35% effective January 1, 1993.
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(3) Long-Term Debt and Interim Financing
(a) Long-Term Debt

Long-term debt outstanding, exclusive of current sinking fund
requirements and related premiums, collateralized by substantially all of
the Company’'s property, is as follows:

Original Balance December 31,

LIssue = 1954 2 1993
(Dollars in Thousands)

First Mortgage Bonds -~

Series A, 7%, due 1996 $19 000 $ 3 800 $ 4 560
Series B, 8.85%, due 2006 35 000 34 650 34 650
Series E, 7 3/8%, due 2020 10 000 10 000 10 000
Series F, 9 7/8%, due 2020 40 000 40 000 40 000

$88 450 . $85 210

The Series A First Mortgage Bonds require an annual sinking fund
payment of $760,000 with an option to retire an additional $95,000 per
guarter.

The Series B First and General Mcrtgage Bonds regqguire an annual
ginking fund payment of $350,000. The requirement may be met by payment,
repurchase of bonds or certification of an amount of property additions
equal to 60% of bondable property (as that term is defined in the
indenture). The Company expects to certify additional bondable property in
lieu of making sinking fund payments on these bonds.

The Series E and Series F First and General Mortgage Bonds were issued
in conjunction with The Industrial Development Authority of the State of New
Hampshire issuing Solid Waste Disposal Bonds and Pollution Control Bonds,
respectively. The bonds were issued pursuant to a Loan and Trust Agreement
dated December 1, 1990 among the Authority, the Company and the First
National Bank of Boston, the Trustee.

(b) Notes Payable to Banks

The Company and other system companies maintain both committed and
uncommitted lines of credit for the financing of their construction
programs, on a short-term basis, and for other corporate purposes. As of
December 31, 1994, system companies had $90 million of committed lines that
will expire at varying intervals in 1995. These lines are normally renewed
upon expiration and regquire annual fees of up to .1875% of the individual
line. At December 31, 1994, the uncommitted lines of credit totaled $90
million. Interest rates on the outstanding borrowings generally are at an
adjusted money market rate and averaged 4.3% and 3.4% in 1994 and 1993,
respectively. The Company’s notes payable to banks totaled $11,325,000 ard
$28,000,000 at December 31, 1994 and 1993, respectively.

(¢) Advances from Affiliates

At December 31, 1994 the Company had short-term notes payable to the
System totaling $9,350,000. The Company had no notes payable to the System
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at December 31, 1993. These notes are written for a term of up to 11 months
and 29 days. Interest is at the prime rate and is adjusted for changes in
that rate during the terms of the nctes. This rate averaged 7.3% and 6% in
1994 and 1993, respectively.

The Company is a member of the COM/Energy Money Pool (the Pool), an
arrangement among the subsidiaries of the System, whereby short-term cash
surpluses are used to help meet the short-term borrowing needs of the
utility subsidiaries. In general, lenders to the Pool receive a higher rate
of return than they otherwise would on such investments, while borrowers pay
a lower interest rate than that available from banks. Interest rates on the
ocutstanding borrowings are based on the monthly average rate the Company
would otherwise have to pay banks, less one-half the difference between that
rate and the monthly average U.S. Treasury Bill weekly auction rate. The
borrowings are for a period of less than one year and are payable upon
demand. Rates on these borrowings averaged 4.3% and 3.2% in 1994 and 1993,
respectively. T'he Company had no notes payable to the Pool at December 31,
1994 and had $8,310,000 of notes payable to the Pool at December 31, 19983.

(d) Disclosures About Fair Value of Financial Instruments

Tne fair value of certain financial instruments included in the
accompanying balance sheets as of December 31, 1994 and 1993 are as follows:

—l83
(Dollars in Thousands)

Carrying Fair Carrying Fair
Value Value Value Value
Long~term Debt $88 823 $91 020 $89 556 $104 325

The carrying amount of cash, notes payable to banks and advances from
affiliates approximates the fair value because of the short maturity of
these financial instruments.

The estimated fair value of long-term debt is based on quoted market
prices of the same or similar issues or on the current rates offered for
debt with the same remaining maturity. The fair values shown above do not
purport to represent the amounts at which those obligations would be
settled.

(4) Supplemental Disclosures of Cash Flow Information

The Company's supplemental information concerning cash flow activities is
as follows:
21883 _1992
(Dollars in Thousands)
Interest paid (net of
capitalized amounts) $9 224 $9 704 $8 464
Income taxes paid 9 055 9 467 8 123
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(a) Comstruction

The Company is engaged in a continuous construction program presently
estimated at $69.8 million for the five-year period 1995 through 1998. Of
that amount, $27.4 million is estimated for 1995. The program is subject to
periodic review and revision because of factors such as changes in business
conditions, rates of customer growth, effects of inflation, maintenance of
reliable and safe service, equipment delivery schedules, licensing delays,
availability, and cost of capital and environmental factors. The Company
expects to finance these expenditures on an interim basis with internally
generated funds and short-term borrowings that are ultimately expected to be
repaid with proceeds from sales of long-term debt and equity securities.

(b) Seabrook Nuclear Power Plant

The system’s 3.52% interest in the Seabrook nuclear power plant is
owned by the Company to provide for a portion of the capacity and energy
needs of Cambridge and Commonwealth Electric. The Company is recovering
100% of its Seabrock 1 investment through power contracts pursuant to FERC
approval.

Pertinent information with respect to the Company’'s joint-ownership
interest in Seabrook 1 and information relating to operating expenses which
are included in the accompanying financial statements, are as follows:

1994 1993

(Dollars in Thousands)
Utility plant-in-service $232 374 $233 140
Nuclear fuel 18 500 18 514

Accumulated depreciation
and amortization (41 654) (34 771)
Construction work in progress 651 881
$209 871 $217 764
1993 1992

(Dellars in Thousands)
Operating expenses:

Fuel $ 1 939 $ 3 853 $ 3 952
Other operation 4 340 4 580 5 705
Maintenance 1 688 893 1 508
Depreciation 6 531 6 522 6 426
Amortization 1 320 1 319 1 320
$15 818 $17 167 $18 911
Plant capacity (MW) 1,150 In-service date 1990
Canal’'s share: Operating license
Percent interest 3.52% expiration date 2026
Entitlement (MW) 40.5

The Company and the other joint-owners have established a Seabrook
Nuclear Decommissioning Financing Fund to cover post operation
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decommissioning costs. For the years 1994, 1993 and 1992. *he Company paid
$271,000, $259,000 and $235,000, respectively, as its slare of tnc rost of
this fund. The estimated cost to decommission the plait is $382 million in
1994 dollars, through December 31, 1994. The Company’'s share of this
liability (approximately $13.4 million), less its share of the market value
of the decommissioning trust ($1 million), is approxirately $12.4 million.

(c) Environmental Matters

The Company is subject to laws and regulations administered by
rederal, state and local authorities relating to the gquality of the
environment. These laws and regulations affect, among other things, the
siting and operation of electric generating and transmission facilities and
can require the installation of expensive air and water pollution contrel
equipment. These regulations have had an impact on the Company's operations
in the past and will continue to have an impact on future operations,
capital costs and construction schedules of major facilities..

(6) vidend st

At December 31, 1994, approximately $42,414,000 of retained earnings
was restricted against the payment of cash dividends by terms of the
Indenture of Trust securing long-term debt.

(7 Employee Benefit Plans
(a) Pension

The Company has a noncontributory pension plan covering substantially
all regular employees who have attained the age of 21 and have completed one
year of service. Pension benefits are based on an employee’'s years of
service and compensation. The Company makes monthly contributicns to the

plan consistent with the funding requirements of the Employee Retirement
Income Security Act of 1974.

Components of pension expense and related assumptions to develop
pension expense were as follows:

1994 1993 19982
(Dollars in Thousands)

Service cost $ 457 $ 384 s 319
Interest cost 985 960 799
Return on plan assets - (gain)/loss 220 (1 741) (1 138)
Net amortization and deferral (1 139) 913 386
Total pension expense 533 516 366
Transfers from affiliates, net 279 270 317
Less: Amounts capitalized and other 181 160 150
Net pension expense $ 631 $ 626 $ 533
Discount rate 7.25% 8.50% 8.50%
Assumed rate of return 8.50 8.50 8.50
Rate of increase in future

compensation 4.50 £.50 5.50
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Pension expense reflects the use of the projected unit credit method which
is alsoc the actuarial cost method used in determining future funding of the
plan. The funded status of the Company’'s pension plan (using a measurement

date of December 31) is as follows:

Accumulated benefit obligation:

1334

1293

(Dollars in Thousands)

Jested $ (8 698) $ (9 333)
Nonvested (1 641) (1 614)
$(10 3:9) $410 947)
Projected benefit obligation $(12 579) $(13 668)
Plan assets at fair market value 12 479 12 906
Projected b2nefit obligation
greater than plan assets (100) (762)
Unamortized transition obligation 120 . 138
Unrecognized prior service cost 588 532
Unrecognized gain {1 _057) (248)
Accrued pension liability $ (449) $ (340)

The following actuarial assumptions were used in determining the
plan’s year-end funded status:

1994 1993
Discount rate 8.50% 7.25%
Rate of increase in future compensation 5.00 4.50

Plan assets consist primarily of fixed-income and equity securities.
Fluctuations in the fair market value of plan assets will affect pension
expense in future years.

(b) Other Postretirement Benefits

Through December 31, 1992, the Company provided postretirement health
care and life insurance benefits to eligible retired empluyees. Employees
became eligible for these benefits if their age plus years of service at
retirement equaled 75 or more, provided, however, that such service was
performed for the Company or another subsidiary of the System. As of
January 1, 1993, the Company eliminated postretirement health care benefits
for those non-bargaining employees who were less than 40 years of or had
less than 12 years cof service at that date. Under certain circumstuaces,
eligible employees are now reguired to make contributions for postretirement
benefits.

Effective January 1, 1993, the Company adopted the provisions of
Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 106 "Employers’ Accounting
for Postretirement Benefits Other Than Pensions® (SFAS No. 106). This new
standard requires the accrual of the expected cost of such benefits during
the employees’ years of service and the recognition of an actuarially
determined postretirement benefit obligation earned by existing retirees.
The assumptions and calculations involved in determining the accrual and the
accumulated postretirement benefit obligation (APBO) closely parallel
pension accounting requirements. The cumulative effect of implementation of
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SFAS No. 106 as of January 1, 1993 was approximately $5 million, which is
being amortized over twenty years. Prior to 1993, the cost of postretirement
benefits was recognized as the benefits were paid. The cost of retiree
medical care and life insurance benefits totaled $131,000 in 1992.

In 1993, the Company began making contributions te various voluntary
employees’ beneficiary association (VEBA) trusts that were established
pursuant to section 501(c)9 of the Internal Revenue Code (the Code). The
Company alsc makes contributions to a subaccount of its pension plan
pursuant to section 401(h) of the Code to satisfy a pertion of its
postretirement benefit ebligation. The Company contributed approximately
$740,000 and $684,000 to these trusts during 1994 and 1993, respectively.

The net periodic postretirement benefit cost for the years ended
December 31, 1994 and 1993 include the following components:

1994 .
(Dollars in Thousands)

Service cost $ 164 $ 169
Interest cost 409 428
Return on plan assets (11) (35)
Amortization of transition obligation

over 20 years 248 249
Net amortization and deferral (66) 1
Total postretirement benefit cost 744 812
Transfers from affiliates, net 426 374
Less: Amounts capitalized and other 892 857

Net postretirement benefit cost $ 278 $ 328

The funded status of the Company's postretirement benefit plan using a
measurement date of December 31, 1994 and 1593 is as follows:

1993
(Dollars in Thousands)

Accumulated postretirement benefit obligation:

Retirees $(2 710) $(2 596)
Fully eligible active plan participants (553) (559)
Other active plan participants (2 250) (2 176)
(5 513) (5 331)
Plan assets at fair market value 1 187 636
Projected postretirement benefit obligation
greater than plan assets (4 326) (4 695)
Unamortized transition obligation 4 474 4 722
Unrecognized gain (148) (27)

Riatins R

The following actuarial assumptions were used in determining the plan’s
year-end funded status:

1994 1993
Discount rate 8.50% 7.25%
Rate of increase in future compensation 5.00 4.50
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In determining its estimated APBO and the funded status of the plan
4 and 1993, the Company assumed estimated health care trend rates as

LOWS

Medicare part B premiums
Medical care
Dental care

The above rates, with the exception of the dental rate, which remains

“"007

decrease to five percent in the year 2007 and remain at that level
reafter. A one percent change in the medical trend rate would have a
impact on the Company‘s annual expense (interest component-$56,000;
t-$37,000) and would change the transition okligation by
ADD
Plan sssets consist primarily of fixed-income and egquity securities.
tuations in the fair market value of plan assets will affect
tretirement benefit expense in future years.

y has an Employees Savings Plan that provides for Company
to contributions by eligible employees up to four
) employee’'s compensation rate. Effective January 1, 1993,
increased to five percent for those employees no longer
ostretirement health benefits The Company’'s contribution was
$234,000 in 1993 and $197,000 in 1992

y leases egquipment and cffice space under arrangements that are
operating leases. These lease agreements are for terms of one

Leases currently in effect contain no provisions that
Company from entering into future lease agreements or

has entered into support agreements with other participating
New Engl ilities for 3.8% of the Hydro-Quebec Phase 1]l transmission
faciliti i makes monthly support payments to cover depreciation and
interest
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Future minimum lease payments, by period and in the aggregate, of capital
leases and non cancelable operating leases consisted of the following at
December 31, 1%%4:

(Dollars in Thousands)

1995 $ 330 $ 2 080
1996 311 2 014
1997 310 1 9851
1998 309 1 888
1999 309 1 825
Beyond 1999 929 22 640
Total future minimum lease payments $2 498 32 398
Less:Estimated interest element

included therein 18 554
Estimated present value of future

minimum lease payments $13 844

Total rent expense for all operating leases, except those with terms
of a month or less, amounted to $421,000 in 1994, $438,000 in 1993 and
$452,000 in 1992. There were no contingent rentals and no sublease rentals
for the years 1994, 1993 and 198%82.
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PART IV,
(a) 1. Index to Financial Statements

Financial statements and notes theretc of the Company together with the
Keport of Independent Public Accountants, are filed under Item 8 of this
report and listed on the Index to Financial Statements and Schedules
(page 14) .

(a) 2. Index to Financial Statement Schedules

Filed herewith at page indicated are financial statement schedules of
the Company:

- Investments in, Equity Earnings of, and Dividends Received
from Related Parties - Years Ended December 31, 1994, 1993 and 1992
(page 40).

(a) 3. Exhibits:

ote o ts -

a. Unless otherwise designated, the exhibits listed below are
incorporated by reference to the appropriate exhibit numbers and the
Securities and Exchange Commission file numbers indicated in
parentheses.

b. The following is a glossary of Commonwealth Energy System and

subsidiary companies’ acronyms that are used throughout the following
Exhibit Index:

s RN PP CL e Commonwealth Energy System

g TE I L Y. Commonwealth Electric Company

i TIPSR S SR Cambridge Electric Light Company
TR NS Ly 3 Canal Electric Company

DR 4 5 o AR R New Bedford Gas and Edison Light Company

Exhibit Index

Exhibit 3. Articles of incorporation and by-laws.
3.8 Articles of incorporation of CEC (Exhibit i to CEC’'s 1990 Form 10-

K, File No. 2-30057).

Y By-laws of CEC, as amended (Exhibit 2 to the CEC 19%0 Form 10-K,
File No. 2-30057).
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Exhibit &. Instruments defining the righte of security bolders, inciuding
indentures

Indenture of Trust and First Mortgage between CEC and State Street
Bank and Trust Company, Trustee, dated October 1, 1968 (Exhibit
4(b) to the CEC Form S-1, File No. 2-30057).

First and General Mortgage Indenture between CEC and Citibank,
N.A., Trustee, dated September 1, 1976 (Exhibit 4(b) (2Z) toc the CEC
Form $-1, File No. 2-56915).

First Supplemental dated Octcber 1, 1968 with State Street Bank
and Trust Company, Trustee, dated September 1, 1976 (Exhibit
4(b)(3) to the CEC Form S$-1, File No. 2-56915).

Third Supplemental dated September 1, 1976 with Citibank, N.A.,
New York, NY, Trustee, dated December 1, 1950 (Exhibit 3 to the
CEC 1990 Form 10-K, File No. 2-30057).

Fourth Supplemental dated September 1, 1976 with Citibank, N.A.,
New York, NY, Trustee, dated December 1, 1990 (Exhibit 4 to the
CEC 1990 Form 10-K, File No. 2-30057).

10

10.

10.

10.

10.

10.

10.

1

1.
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Power contracts.

Power contracts between CEC and NBGEL and CEL dated December 1,
1965 (Exhibit 13(a)(1-4) to the CEC Form S-1, File No. 2-30057).

Agreement between CEC and Montaup Electric Company (MEC) for use of
common facilities by Canal Units I and II and for allocation of
related costs, executed October 14, 1975 (Exhibit 1 to the CEC 1985
Form 10-K, File No. 2-30057).

Agreement between CEC and MEC for joint-ownership of Canal Unit II,
executed October 14, 1975 (Exhibit 2 to the CEC 1985 Form 10-K,
File No. 2-30057).

Agreement between CEC and MEC for .ease relating to Canal Unit II,
executed October 14, 1975 (Exhibi* 3 to the CEC 1985 Form 10-K,
File No. 2-30057,.

Contract between CEC, NBGEL and CEL, affiliated companies, for the
sale of specified amounts of electricity from Canal Unit 2 dated
January 12, 1976 (Exhibit 7 to the CES Form 10-K for 1985, File No.
1-7316).

Power contract, as amended to February 28, 1950, superseding the
Power Contrart dated September 1, 1986 and amendment dated June 1,
1988, between CEC (seller) and CE and CEL (purchasers) for seller's
entire share of the Net Unit Capability of Seabrook 1 and related
energy (Exhibit 1 to the CEC Form 10-Q (March 1990), File No. 2-
30057).




10.

10.

10.

10.

10.

10.

10.

10.

10.

10.

10.

10.

10.

10.

.10

.11

CANAL ELECTRIC COMPANY

Purchase and Sale Agreement together with an implementing Addendum
dated December 31, 1981 between CEC and CE for the purchase and
sale of the CE 3.52% joint-ownership interest in the Seabroock
units, dated January 2, 1981 (Exhibit 1 to the Company’s Form 8-K
(January 13, 1982), File No. 2-30057).

Agreement for Joint-Ownership, Construction and Operation of the
New Hampshire Nuclear Units (Seabrook) dated May 1, 1973 and filed
by NBGEL as Exhibit 13(N) on Form S-1 dated October 1973, File No.
2-49013, and as amended below:

First through Fifth Amendments to 10.1.6 dated May 24, 1974,
June 21, 1974, September 25, 1974, October 25, 1974, and January
31, 1975, respectively (Exhibit 13(m) tc the NBGEL Form S-1
(November 7, 1975), File No. 2-54995).

Sixth through Eleventh Amendments to 10.1.6 dated April 18, 1978,
April 18, 1979, April 25, 1979, June 8, 1979, October 11, 1979 and
December 15, 1979, respectively (Exhibit 1 to the CEC 1989% Form 10-
K, File No. 2-30057).

Twelfth and Thirteenth Amendments to 10.1.6 dated May 16, 1980 and
December 31, 1980, respectively ((Exhibit 1 and 2 to the CE Form
10-Q (June 1982), File No. 2-7749).

Fourteenth Amendment to 10.1.6 dated June 1, 1982 (Exhibit 3 to the
CE Form 10-Q (June 1982), File No. 2-7749).

Fifteenth and Sixteenth Amendments to 10.1.6 dated April 27, 1984
and June 15, 1984, respectively (Exhibit 1 to the CEC Form 10-Q
(June 1984), File No. 2-30057).

Seventeenth Amendment to 10.1.6 dated March 8, 1985 (Exhibit 1 to
the CEC Form 10-Q (March 1985), File No. 2-30057).

Eighteenth Amendment to 10.1.6 dated March 14, 1986 (Exhibit 1 to
the CEC Form 10-Q (March 1986), File No. 2-30057).

Nineteenth Amendment to 10.1.6 dated May 1, 1986 (Exhibit 1 to the
CEC Form 10-Q (June 1986), File No. 2-30057).

Twentieth Amendment to 10.1.6 dated September 139, 1586 (Exhibit 1
to the CEC Form 10-K for 1986, File No. 2-30057).

Twenty-First Amendment to 10.1.6 dated November 12, 1987 (Exhibit 1
to the CEC Form 10-K for 1987, File No. 2-30057).

Twenty-Second Amendment and Settlement Agreement to 10.1.6 dated
January 13, 1989 (Exhibit 4 to the CEC 1968 Form 10-K, File No. 2-
30057). '

Resolutions proposed by Merrill Lynch Capital Markets and adopted
by the Joint-Owners cf the Seabrook Nuclear Project regarding
Project financing, dated May 14, 1984 (Exhibit 1 to the CEC Form
10-Q (March 1984), File No. 2-30057).
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Interim Agreement to Preserve and Protect the Assets of and
Investment in the New Hampshire Nuclear Units by and between CEC,
PSNH and other Participants dated April 27, 1984 (Exhibit 2 to the
CEC Form 10-Q (June 1984), File No.2-30057).

Agreement for Seabrook Project Disbursing Agent establishing Yankee
Atomic Electric Company as the disbursing agent under the Joint-
Ownership Agreement, dated May 23, 1984 (Exhibit 4 to the CEC Form
10-Q (June 1984), File No. 2-30057).

First Amendment to 10.1.9 dated March 8, 1985 (Exhibit 2 to the CEC
Form 10-Q (March 1985) ,File No.2-30057).

second through Fifth Amendments to 10.1.9 dated May 20, 1985, June
18, 1985, January 2, 1986 and November 12, 1987, respectively,
(Exhibit 4 to the CEC 1987 Form 10-K, File No. 2-30057).

Capacity Acquisition Agreement between CEC, CEL and CE dated
September 25, 1980 (Exhibit 1 to the CEC 1991 Form 10-K, File No.
2-30087).

Supplement to 10.1.10 consisting of three Capacity Acquisition
Commitments each dated May 7, 1987, concerning Phases I and II of
the Hydro-Quebec Project and electricity acquired from Connecticut
Light and Power Company (CL&P) (Exhibit 1 to the CEC Form 10-Q
(September 1987), File No. 2-30057).

Supplements to 10.1.10 consisting of two Capacity Acguisition
Commitments each dated October 31, 1988, concerning electricity
acquired from Western Massachusetts Electric Company and/or CL&P
for periods ranging from November 1, 1988 to October 31, 1954
(Exhibit 2 to the CEC Form 10-Q (September 1989), File No. 2-
30057).

Amendment to 10.1.10 as amended, and restated, June 1, 1993,
henceforth referred to as the Capacity Acguisition and Disposition
Agreement, whereby CEC, as agent, in addition to acquiring power
may also sell bulk electric power which CEL and/or CE owns or
otherwise has the right to sell (Exhibit 1 to the CEC Form 10-Q
(September 1993), File No. 2-30057).

Capacity Disposition Commitment dated June 25, 1993 by and between
CEC (Unit 2) and CE for the sale of a portion of CE's entitlement
in Unit 2 to Green Mountain Power Corporation (Exhibit 1 to the CEC
Form 10-Q (September 1993), File No. 2-30057).

Termination Supplement between CEC, CE and CEL for Seabrook Unit 2,
dated December 8, 1986 (Exhibit 3 to the CEC Form 10-K for 1986,
File No. 2-30057).

Agreement, dated Septamber 1, 1985, With Respect To Amendment of
Agreement With Respect To Use Of Quebec Interconnection, dated
December 1, 1981, among certain NEPOOL utilities to include Phase
I1 facilities in the definition of *Project® (Exhibit 1 to the CEC
Form 10-Q (September 1985), File No. 2-30057).
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Amendatory Agreement No.3 with Respect to Use of Quebec
Interconnection dated December 1, 1981, as amended to June 1, 1950,
among certain NEPOOL utilities (Exhibit 1 to the CEC Form 10-Q
(September 1990), File No. 2-30057).

Preliminary Quebec Interconnection Support Agreement - Phase II
among certain New England electric utilities dated June 1, 1984
(Exhibit 6 to the CE Form 10-Q (June 1984), File No. 2-7749).

First through Third Amendments to 10.1.13 as amended March 1, 1985,
January 1, 1986 and March 1, 1987, respectively (Exhibit 1 to the
CEC Form 10-Q (March 1987), File No. 2-30057).

Fifth through Seventh Amendments to 10.1.13 as amended October 15,
1987, December 15, 1987 and March 1, 1988, respectively (Exhibit 1
to the CEC Form 10-Q (June 1988), File No. 2-30057).

Fourth and Eighth Amendments to 10.1.13 as amended Jﬁly 1, 1987 and
August 1, 1988, respectively (Exhibit 3 to the CEC Form 10-Q
(September 1988), File No. 2-30057).

Ninth and Tenth Amendments to 10.1.13 as amended November 1, 1988
and January 15, 1989, respectively (Exhibit 2 to the CEC 1588 Form
10-K, File No. 2-30057).

Eleventh Amendment to 10.1.13 as amended November 1, 1989 (Exhibit
4 to the CEC 1989 Form 10-K, File No. 2-30057).

Twelfth Amendment to 10.1.13 as amended April 1, 19%0 (Exhibit 1 to
the CEC Form 10-Q (June 1990) File No. 2-30057).

Agreement to Preliminary Quebec Interconnection Support Agreement -
Phase II among Public Service Company of New Hampshire (PSNH), New
England Power Co. (NEP), Boston Edison Co. (BECO), and CEC whereby
PSNH assigns a portion of its interests under the original
Agreement to the other three parties, dated October 1, 1987
(Exhibit 2 to the CEC 1987 Form 10-K, File No. 2-30057).

Phase II Equity Funding Agreement for New England Hydro
Transmission Electric Company, Inc. (New England Hydro)
(Massachusetts), dated June 1, 1985, between New England Hydro and
certain NEPOOL utilities (Exhibit 2 to the CEC Form 10-Q (September
1985), File No. 2-30057).

Phase II Egquity Funding Agreement for New England Hydro
Transmission Corporation (New Hampshire Hydro), dated June 1, 1985,
between New Hampshire Hydro and certain NEPOOL utilities (Exhibit 3
to the CEC Form 10-Q (September 1985), File No. 2-30057).

Amendment No. 1 to 10.1.16 as amended May 1, 1986 (Exhibit € to the
CEC Form 10-Q (March 1987), File No. 2-30057).

Amendment No. 2 to 10.1.16 as amended September 1, 1987 (Exhibit 3
to the CEC Form 10-Q (September 1987), File No. 2-30057).
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Phase Il Massachusetts Transmission Facilities Support Agreement,
dated June 1, 1985, refiled as a single agreement incorporsting
Amendments 1 through 7 dated May 1, 1986 through January 1, 1989,
respectively, between New England Hydro and certain NEPOOL
utilities (Exhibit 2 to the CEC Form 10-Q (September 19%0), File
No. 2-30057).

10.1.18 Phase II New Hampshire Transmission Facilities Support Agreement,
dated June 1, 1985, refiled as a single agreement incorporating
Amendments 1 through 8 dated May 1, 1986 through January 1, 1989,
respectively, between New Hampshire Hydro and certain NEPOOL
utilities (Exhibit 3 to {he CEC Form 10-Q (September 1990), File
Nc. 2-30057).

$9.1.39 Phase II New England Power AC Facilities Support Agreement dated
June 1, 1985, between New England Power and certain NEPOOL
utilities (Exhibit € to the CEC Form 10-Q (September 1985), File
No. 2-30057). 1

10.1.19.1 Amendments Nos. 1 and 2 te 10.1.19 as amended May 1, 1986 and
February 1, 1987, respectively (Exhibit 5 to the CEC Form 10-Q
(March 1987), File No. 2-30057).

10.1.19.2 Amendments Nos. 3 and 4 to 10.1.19 as amended June 1, 1987 and
September 1, 1987, respectively (Exhibit S to the CEC Form 10-Q
(September 1987), File No. 2-30057).

10.1.20 Phase II BECO AC Facilities Support Agreement, dated June 1, 1985,
between BECO and certain NEPOOL utilities (Exhibit 7 to the CEC
Form 10-Q (September 1985), File No. 2-30057).

10.1.20.1 Amendments Nos. 1 and 2 to 10.1.20 as amended May 1, 1986 and
February 1, 1987, respectively (Exhibit 2 to the CEC Form 10-Q
(Marck. 1987), File No. 2-30057).

10.1.20.2 Amendments Nos. 3 and 4 to 10.1.20 as amended June 1, 1987 and
September 1, 1987, respectively (Exhibit 4 to the CEC Form 10-Q
(September 1987), File No. 2-30057).

10.1.21 Agreement Authorizing Execution of Phase II Firm Energy Contract,
dated September 1, 1985, among certain NEPOOL utilities in regard
to the purchase of power from Hydro Quebec (Exhibit 8 to the CEC
Form 10-Q (September 1985), File No. 2-30057).

i0.1.22 Agreement to Share Certain Costs Associated with the Tewksbury-
Seabrook Transmission Line, by and among certain NEPOOL utilities,
amending participants, dated May 8, 1986 (Erhibit 2 to the CEC 1986
Form 10-K, File No. 2-30057).

10.1.23 Purchase Agreement dated March 1, 1991, by and between CEC (seller)
and Central Vermont Public Service Corporation (CVPS) whereby CVPS
will purchase 50 MW of capacity from CEC Unit 2 for the term of
March 1, 1991 to October 31, 1995 (Exhibit 1 to the CEC Form 10-Q

(June 1991), File No. 2-30057).
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CANAL ELECTRIC COMPANY

Power Sale Agreement dated March 1, 1991, by and between CEC
(purchaser) and CVPS (seller) whereby buyer will purchase 50 MW of
capacity from seller’'s units (25 MW from Vermont Yankee and 25 MW
from Merrimack 2) for the term of March 1, 1891 to October 31 1995
(Exhibit 2 to the CEC Form 10-Q (June 1991), File No. 2-30057).

Power Exchange Contract, dated March 24, 1993, between New England
Power Company (NEP) and CEC for an exchange of unit capacity in
which NP will purchase 20 MW of CEC’'s Unit 2 capacity in exchange
for CEC's purchase of 20 MW of NEP's Bear Swamp Units 1 and 2 (10
MW per unit) commencing May 31, 1893 through April 28, 1997 and NEP
will purchase 50 MW of CEC's Unit 2 capacity in exchange for CEC's
purchase of 50 MW of NEP's Bear Swamp Units 1 and 2 (25 MW per
unit) commencing November 1, 1993 through April 28, 1997 (Exhibit 1
tc the CEC Form 10-Q (March 1993), File No. 2-30057).

Other agreements.

Employees Savings Plan of Commonwealth Energy System and Subsidiary
Companies as amended and restated as of January 1, 1993 (Exhibit 2
to the CES Form 10-Q (September 1993), File No. 1-7316).

Pension Plan for Employees of Commonwealth Energy System and
Subsidiary Companies as amended and restated January 1, 1993
(Exhibit 1 to the CES Form 10-Q (September 1993), File No.1-7316).

New England Power Pool Agreement (NEPOOL) dated September 1, 18571
as amended through August 1, 1977, between NEGEA Service Corp. as
agent for CEL, CEC, NBGEL, and various other electric utilities
operating in New England, together with amendments dated August 15,
1978 and January 31, 1979 and February 1, 1980 (Exhibit 5(c)(13) to
the CES Form $-16 (April 1980), File No. 2-64731).

Thirteenth Amendment to 10.2.3 as amended September 1, 1981
(Exhibit § to the CES Form 10-K for 1981, File No. 1-7316).

Fourteenth through Twentieth Amendments to 10.2.3 as amended
December 1, 1981, June 1, 1982, June 15, 1983, Octcber 1, 1983,
August 1, 1985, August 15, 1985 and September 1, 1985, respectively
(Exhibit 4 tc the CES Form 10-Q (September 1985), File No. 1-7316).

Twenty-first Amendment to the New England Power Pool Agreement
dated September 1, 1971, as amended January 1, 1986 (Exhibit 1 to
the CES Form 10-Q (March 1986), File No. 1-7316).

Twenty-second Amendment to 10.2.3 as amended to September 1, 1986
(Exhibit 1 to the CES Form 10-Q (September 1986), File No. 1-7316).

Twenty-third Amendment to 10.2.3 as amended to April 30, 1987
(Exhibit 1 to the CES Form 10-Q (June 1%87), File No. 1-7316).

Twenty-fourth Amendment to 10.2.3 as amended to March 1, 1988
(Exhibit 1 to the CES Form 10-K for 1987, File No. 1-7316).
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10.2.3.7 Twenty-fifth Amendment to 10.2.3 as amended to May 1, 1988 (Exhibit
1 to the CES Form 10-Q (March 1988), File No. 1-7316).

10.2.3.8 Twenty-sixth Amendment to 10.2.3 as amended to March 15, 198%
(Exhibit 1 to the CES Form 10-Q (March 198%), File No. 1-7316).

10.2.3.9 Twenty-seventh Amendment to 10.2.3 as amended to October 1, 1950
(Exhibit 3 to the CES 1990 Form 10-K, File No. 1-7316).

10.2.3.10 Twenty-eighth Amendment to 10.2.3 as amended September 15, 1992
(Exhibit 1 to the CES Form 10-Q (September 199%4), File No. 1-7316).

10.2.3.11 Twenty-ninth Amendment to 10.2.3 as amended May 1, 1993 (Exhibit 2
to the CES Form 10-Q (September 1994), File No. 1-7316).

10.2.4 Fuel Supply. Facilities Lease and Operating Contract by and between
on the one side, ESCO (Massachusetts), Inc. and Energy Supply &
Credit Corporation on the other side and CEC dated February 1, 1985
(Exhibit 1 to the CEC Form 10-K for 1984, File No. 2-30057).

10.2.4.1 Amendments Nos. 1 and 2 to 10.2.4 as amended July 1, 1986 and
November 15, 1989, respectively (Exhibit 3 to the CEC 1989 Form
10-K, File No. 2-30057).

10.2.5 0il Supply Contract by and between CEC (buyer) and Carey Energy
Fuels Corporation (seller) for a portiocn of CEC's requirements of
No. 6 residual fuel oil, dated July 1, 1991 (Exhibit 3 to the CEC
Form 10-Q (June 1991), File No. 2-30057).

10.2.6 Assignment Agreement between CEC and ESCO (Massachusetts), Inc.
(ESCO-Mass) and Energy Supply and Credit Corporation whereby CEC
assigns to ESCO-Mass rights and obligations under the Supply
Contract with Carey Energy Fuels Corporation, dated July 1, 1991
(Exhibit 4 to the CEC Form 10-Q (June 1991), File No. 2-30057).

10.3.7 Assignment and Sublease Agreement and CEC’s Consent of Assignment
thereto whereby ESCO-Mass assigns its rights and obligations under
Part II of the Resupply Agreement dated February 1, 1985 to ESCO
Terminals Inc., dated June 4, 1985 (Exhibit 4 to the CEC Form 10-Q
(June 198%5), File No. 2-30057).

Filed herewith:

-

Financial Data Schedule for the year ended December 31, 1994
(Filed herewith as Exhibit 1)

(b) Reports on Form 8-K

No reports on Form B-K were filed during the three months ended
December 31, 199%4.
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SCHEDULE I
CANAL ELECTRIC COMPANY
INVESTMENTS IN, EQUITY EARNINGS OF,
AND DIVIDENDS RECEIVED FROM RELATED PARTIES
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1994, 1993 AND 1992
’ {Dollars in Thousands) i
Investment investmont ‘
Balance Balance
Description of Investment and Beginning of Equity Dividends End of '
Name of Issuer Year Shares Earnings Received Year
New England/Hydro-Quebec Phase II !
HVDC Transmission Project -
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1994
New England Hydro-Transmission
Electric Company, Inc. $ 2 408 136 656 $ 318 $§ 409 $2 313
New England Hydro-Transmission
Corporation 1 453 785.772 193 157 1 _48¢
Total $ 3 861 $ 507 $ 566 $3 802
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1993
New England Hydro-Transmission
Electric Company, Inc. $ 2 580 136 656 $ 1381 $ 533 $2 408
New England Hydro-Transmission
Corporation i 580 785.772 212 349 1 453
Total $ .4 170 $. 573 3. 882 $3 _8¢€1

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1992
New England Hydrc-Transmission '

Electric Company, Inc. $ 2 753 136 656 $ 316 $ 489 $§2 58C
New England Hydro-Transmission

Corporation 1 619 785.772 304 333 1 590

Total | $.4 372 $. 620 $ 822 $4 170




CANAL ELECTRIC COMPANY
EORM 10-K ~ DECEMBER 31, 1994
SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this report to be signed
on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

(Registrant)

By: WILLIAM G. POIST
William G. Poist,
Chairman of the Board and
Chief Executive Officer

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934,
this report has been signed below by the following persons on behalf of the
registrant and in the capacities and on the dates indicated.

Principal Executive Officers:

WILLIAM G. POIST March 28, 1985
William G. Poist,

Chairman of the Board and
Chief Executive Officer

K. D. WRIGHT March 29, 1995
Russell D. Wright,
President and Chief Operating Officer

Principal Financial Officer:

March 29, 1995

James D. Rappoli
Financial Vice President and Treasurer

Principal Accounting Officer:

JOHN A. WHALEN March 29, 1995
John A. Whalen,

Comptroller

A majority of the Board of Directors:

T March 29, 1985
William G. Poist, Director

March 29, 19%5

Russell D. Wright, Director

March 29, 1895

James D. Rappoli, Director
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BD BERRY, DUNN, McNEIL & PARKER

' ) CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS
M{’_ 3 Ty MANAGEMENT CONSULTANTS

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

The Board of Directors and Members
New Hampshire Electric Cooperative, Inc.

We have audited the accompanying balance sheet of New Hampshire Electric Cooperative, Inc. (the
Cooperative) as of December 31, 1994, and the related statements of operations and accumulated
deficit and cash flows for the year then ended. These financial statements are the responsibility of
the Cooperative's management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial state-
ments based on our audit. The financial statements of the Cooperative as of and for the year ended
December 31, 1993, were audited by other auditors whose report dated March 18, 1994, expressed
an unqualified opinion.

We conducted our audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and the standards
for financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptrolier General
of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reason-
able assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit
includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates
made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe
that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, such financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial posi-
tion of New Hampshire Electric Cooperative, Inc., as of December 31, 1294, and the results of its
operations and its cash flows for the year then ended in conformity with generally accepted account-
ing principles.

As described in Note 1 to the financial statements, on March 20, 1992, the Bankruptcy Court
entered an order confirming the Second Amended Plan of Reorganization, as modified, which

became effective on December 1, 1993. Under the Plan of Reorganization, the Cooperative is
required to comply with certain conditions as more fully described in Note 1.

By, b I aily (el

Portland, Maine
March 24, 1995

Offices m Bangor, Mame Portland, Mame Lebanom, New Hampshire Manchester. New Hampshare



NEW HAMPSHIRE ELECTRIC COOPERATIVE, INC.

Balance Sheets

December 31, 1994 and 1993

ASSETS

Utility plant
Nuclear production
Transmission
Distribution
General and other
Construction work in progress

Total utility plant
Less accumulated depreciation and amortization
Net utility plant
Investment in associated organizations, at cost

Current assets

Cash and cash equivalents

Restricted cash

Temporary investments and special deposits

Receivables from members
Energy sales, net of allowance for doubtful accounts

$439 and $483 in 1994 and 1993, respectively

Other

Receivable, Public Service Company of New Hampshire

Materials and supplies

Prepayments and other current assets

Total current assets

Deferred debits and other assets

1994
(000s)

$105,905
4,343
123,818
11,952

189
248,207
22,956
193251
—1.965

264
57
3,304

5,845

332
3,024
2,978

38,736
$232.202

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

3.

1993
(000s)

$106,088
4,293
118,644
12,893
—2.082

244,000
48,154
195,846
—1.903

266
69
4,314

5,039

502
1,183
3,156

$244.903



EE I R B T R ER N R BN BN R N . ...

LIABILITIES AND EQUITIES

Equities
Patronage capital
Accumulated deficit

Total deficit
Current liabilities
Line of credit
Accounts payable
Accrued expenses
Customer deposits
Current portion of long-term obligations

Total current liabilities

Long-term obligations

Deferred credits

1994 1993
(000s) (000s)

$ 13,308 $ 13,308
Q1.3514) (21.793)

A8206)  _(8.487)

3,000 -
10,735 9,452
2,573 1,346

300

E
: £ ELs

5222200 9244003




NEW HAMPSHIRE ELECTRIC COOPERATIVE, INC.
Statements of Operations and Accumulated Deficit

Years Ended December 31, 1994 and 1993

1994
(000s)

Operating revenues $ 94,851
Operating expenses _18.432
Operating margin before interest and other deductions
Interest and other deductions
Net operating margins (deficits)
Nonoperating margins (deficits)
Reorganization items
Interest
Other
Total nonoperating margins
Net income
Assignment of 1993 operating margins to patronage capital

Accumulated deficit, beginning of year

Accumulated deficit, end of year

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

3

1993
(00s)

$ 95,414

16,091

19,323

2,293
(1,030)
(23.058)
SQLID)




NEW HAMPSHIRE ELECTRIC COOPERATIVE, INC.
Statements of Cash Flows

Years Ended December 31, 1994 and 1993

1994
(000s)
Cash flows from operating activities
Net income $ 281
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided
by operating activities

Depreciation and amortization 8,054
Gain on sale of fixed assets (34)

Interest added to principal 5,178
Write-down of nuclear plant -
Decrease (increase) in

CFC Capital Term Certificates (62)
Customer and other accounts receivable (2,477)
Supplies 178
Prepaid expenses 201
Deferred debits (7,368)
Increase (decrease) in
Accounts payable 1,283
Accrued expenses 1,227
Deferred credits (371)
Customer deposits {100)
Net cash provided by operating activities before
reorganization items 2.99%

Cash flows from reorganization activities
Reorganization expenses -
Net cash used by reorganization activities

Net cash provided by operating activities 3.990

Cash flows from investing activities
Proceeds from sale of assets 39
Construction and acquisition of plant (7,432)
Plant removal costs (216)
Materials salvaged from retirements 184
Net cash used by investing activities (1.425)

(Continued next page)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

4-

1993
(000s)

$2,293

8,251

8,148
160

162

1,173
(499)
(540)
(5,106)

(1,563)
(7,347)
(2,564)
—{19)

e
(1.218)
(1.218)
1331

(8,832)
(188)

103

(8.217)




NEW HAMPSHIRE ELECTRIC COOPERATIVE, INC.
Statements of Cash Flows (Concluded)

Years Ended December 31, 1994 and 1993

1994
(000s)
Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from credit line $ 3,000
Principal payments of long-term obligations (2.589)
Net cash provided (used) by financing activities 411
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents (1,024)
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year 4,649
Cash and cash equivalents, end of year $3.625
Supplerental disclosures of cash flow information
Cash paid during the year for interest $13.640

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

(000s)

(10,127)
14.776
$.4.042

$14.210



NEW HAMPSHIRE ELECTRIC COOPERATIVE, INC.
Notes to Financial Statements

December 31, 1994 and 1993

On May 6, 1991, New Hampshire Electric Cooperative, Inc. (NHEC or the Cooperative) filed
a petition for relief under Chapter 11 of the Federal Bankruptcy Code in the United States
Bankruptcy Court for the District of New Hampshire (the Bankruptcy Court). Under Chapter
11, most actions to recover claims against NHEC in existence prior to the filing of the petition
for relief under the Federal Bankruptcy Code were stayed while NHEC continued business
operations, under the direction of the Bankruptcy Court, as a debtor in possession.

On January 13, 1992, a Second Amended Plan of Reorganization jointly proposed with the State
of New Hampshire and Public Service Company of New Hampshire (PSNH) was submitted to
the Bankruptcy Court. On March 20, 1992, the Bankruptcy Court confirmed the Second
Amended Plan of Reorganization, as modified (the Plan). The Plan provided for NHEC to
remain a member-owned electric cooperative and to retain all of its assets, including its
2.17391% undivided ownership interest in the Seabrook Nuclear Plant (Seabrook). Under the
terms of the Plan, NHEC's indebtedness to the Rural Utilities Service (RUS) (formerly the
Rural Electrification Administration) and the National Rural Utilities Cooperative Finance
Corporation (CFC) was to be restructured and other creditors of NHEC paid in full.

The Plan provided for NHEC to emerge from bankruptcy with forecast revenues sufficient both
to meet its obligations for debt service and to provide continuing electric service to all of its
members. Forecast revenues are based on load growth studies and certain retail rate assump-
tions. Retail rates are regulated by the New Hampshire Public Utilities Commission (NHPUC)
and, although certain assumptions have been made in the Flan, NHEC will be limited to those
rates, approved in accordance with rate setting principles as implemented by the NHPUC.

In addition to the restructuring of RUS and CFC debt, the Plan provided for the full resolution
and settlement of disputes between NHEC and PSNH, a subsidiary of Northeast Utilities (NUJ).
NHEC will continue to purchase most of its wholesale power requirements from PSNH under
a long-term contract through November 6, 2006, and will sell its Seabrook power to PSNH
under a Sellback Contract through June 30, 2000.

On December 1, 1993, subsequent to satisfaction of all Plan conditions, the Plan became effec-
tive and the comprehensive settlement and discharge of all litigation and claims encompassed by
the Plan became final. From the December 1, 1993, effective date through December 21, 1993,
the Cooperative made payments totalling approximately $9 million in settlement of certain
claims. As of December 31, 1993, the Cooperative had accrued $2.5 million for the payment
of additional consulting fees incurred during the bankruptcy proceedings. There were no further
applications for bankruptcy consulting fees made in 1994, and payment of all outstanding fees
was made in 1994 pursuant to the final bankruptcy court order.



NEW HAMPSHIRE ELECTRIC COOPERATIVE, INC.
Notes to Financial Statements

December 31, 1994 and 1993

. Sienif ine Polici
Sreanizati | p

NHEC is a rural electric cooperative utility established under the laws of the state of New
Hampshire. Financing assistance has been provided by the RUS and, therefore, NHEC is subject
to certain rules and regulations promulgated for rural electric borrowers by RUS. NHEC is a
distribution cooperative, providing electric power to members in certain areas of New
Hampshire, and has a 2.17391 % ownership in the Seabrook nuclear facility. NHEC is presently
serving over 66,000 members, spread over nine of New Hampshire's ten counties.

Regulation
NHEC is subject to the rules and regulations of the NHPUC for retail sales of power and the
Federal Energy Regulatory Commission (FERC) for the sales of wholesale power.

System of Accounts

NHEC maintains its accounting records in accordance with the FERC chart of accounts as
modified and adopted by RUS

Utility Plant and Depreciation

Utility plant and construction work in progress is stated at cost which includes an allowance for
funds used during construction.

The provision for depreciation and amortization is computed on a straight-line method at rates
based upon the estimated service lives of the assets. Depreciation and amortization expense was
approximately $8,054,000 in 1994 and $8,251,000 in 1993. Major depreciable assets are esti-
mated to have the following services lives:

Years

Nuclear plant 36
Transmission plant 29
Distribution plant 36
General plant 6 to 33

Maintenance and repairs of utility plant are charged to operations as incurred. Replacements and
betterments are capitalized. At the time units of utility plant are retired, the cost of the property
retired and costs of removal, less salvage, are charged to the allowance for depreciation.




NEW HAMPSHIRE ELECTRIC COOPERATIVE, INC.

Notes to Financial Statements

December 31, 1994 and 1993

2. Sienificant 2 ing Policies (Continued)

Al for Funds Used During C .

Allowance for funds used during construction represents the cost of related borrowed funds used
for construction of utility plant. The allowance is capitalized as a component of the cost of
utility plant. Capitalization of interest costs related to construction was available to recommence
on December 1, 1993; however, no amount was capitalized during 1993. The Cooperative
capitalized $60,000 of interest in 1994,

Operating Revenues

Operating revenues are based on rates, authorized by the NHPUC, which are applied to
members' consumption of electricity. NHEC bills its members on a cycle basis througiiout the
month. NHEC records revenues as it bills its customers. Credit is extended to electric customers
based on terms dictated by the NHPUC.

Purchased Power Costs

NHEC rates reflect estimates of the cost of purchased power. Retail members are billed at a
levelized power cost adjustment charge rate based on projected data for the cost of power from
wholesale suppliers. To the extent that cost estimates differ from actual charges incurred, the
differences are deferred and refunded or charged to members through periodic rate adjustments.

Material { Suppli
Inventories of materials and supplies are stated at average cost.

Income Tax Status

NHEC is exempt from United States income taxes pursuant to §501(c)(12) of the Internal

Revenue Code, which requires that at least 85% of a cooperative's net income be collected from
its members.

Patronage Capital

The bylaws of the Cooperative provide that operating revenues from the furnishing of electric
energy in excess of operating costs and expenses shall be allocated as patronage capital. All
other amounts received in excess of other expenses shall be used to offset any losses incurred
during the current or any prior fiscal year and, to the extent not needed for that purpose, allo-
cated to its patrons on the basis of their patronage, and any amount so allocated shall be
included as part of the capital credited to the accouns of patrons.

-8-



NEW HAMPSHIRE ELECTRIC COOPERATIVE, INC.
Notes to Financial Statements

December 31, 1994 and 1993

2. Signifi : T —
Pawronage Capital (Concluded)
NHEC may refund patronage capital with the consent of certain creditors.

In the event of the dissolution or liquidation of NHEC, after all outstanding indebtedness has
been paid, outstanding capita! credits shall be retired without priority on a pro rata basis.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

NHEC considers all highly liquid debt instruments with an original maturity of three months or
less to be cash equivalents.

The Cooperative maintains its cash in bank deposit accounts which may exceed federally insured
limits. The Cooperative has not experienced losses in such accounts, and does not believe that
it is exposed to any significant risk on cash and cash equivalents.

Roecently Issued Accounting Standards

Tue Financial Accounting Standaids Board has issued Statement of Financial Accounting
Standards No. 106, "Employers’ Accounting for Postretirement Benefits Other Than Pensions"
(SFAS 106). The Cooperative is required to adopt this statement as of January 1, 1995. This
statement will require accrual of postretirement benefits (such as health care benefits) during the
years an employee provides service. The Cooperative provides health care and life insurance
benefits to certain retired employees that meet vesting requirements. The cost of these benefits
are currently expensed on a pay-as-you-go basis. The total pay-as-you-go health and life insur-
ance costs were approximately $54,000 and $69,000 in 1994 and 1993, respectively.

The actuarially calculated accumulated postretirement benefit obligation as of January 1, 1995,
is approximately $2,250,000. This amount will be recorded as an expense over a 20-year peri-
od. The estimated yearly effect on operations will be approximately $400,000 which includes the
amortization of the transition obligation. The Cooperative, based on management's understand-
ing of the NHPUC's treatment of similar utilities, expects that the postretirement benefit costs
will be recovered through current rates.




NEW HAMPSHIRE ELECTRIC COOPERATIVE, INC.
Notes to Financial Statements

December 31, 1994 and 1993

2 Sienificant A ins Policies (Concluded

Fair Value of Financial 1

The Cooperative has estimated, based on market values or the amounts to be ultimately realized,
that the carrying value approximates fair value for all financial instruments. Long-term debt
would have an estimated fair value equivalent to carrying value. These estimates are not neces-
sarily indicative of the amounts that the Cooperative could realize in the current market and
different estimation methodologies may have a material effect on the estimated fair value
amounts.

Reclassificati

Certain reclassifications have been made to 1993 balances so that they are consistent with 1954
presentation.

" Usility Plant - Nucl

The NHPUC, by an order dated May 3, 1991, established that NHEC's "initial plant invest-
ment" in the Seabrook nuclear facility for "wholesale" rate setting purposes shall be $126 mil-
lion as of the in-service date of July 1, 1990.

The Plan provides for the sale of all of the capacity and related output of NHEC's 2.17391%
share of the Seabrook nuclear facility to PSNH through June 30, 2000. The terms of the sale are
specified in a Unit Contract (the Sellback) between NHEC and PSNH which became effective
or December 1, 1993. The Sellback also provided that the valuation of the plant will be further
reduced on the effective date. As of the effective date, the value of the plant was adjusted to
approximately $99 million.

Upon termination of the Sellback in June 2000, the capacity and output from NHEC's share of
the Seabrook nuclear facility will be available for NHEC to use or sell. Because current electric
rates to power consumers other than PSNH exclude Seabrook costs, NHEC will be required to
obtain regulatory approval for any new retail rates which contain costs related to Seabrook.

In 1984, construction of Seabrook Unit 2 ceased and in November 1986 the Joint Owners in
Seabrook (the Joint Owners) voted to abandon the unfinished plant and included in accrued

expense is $350,000 which is provided for NHEC's share of the net costs of dismantling. Unit 2
has yet to be dismantled.

-10-



NEW HAMPSHIRE ELECTRIC COOPERATIVE, INC.
Notes to Financial Statements

December 31, 1994 and 1993

3. Utility Plant - Nuclear (Continued)

Decommissioning costs are accrued over the service life of the Seabrook Plant.
Decommissioning expenses totaled approximately $163,000 and $132,000 in 1994 and 1993,
respectively. The license for the plant is scheduled to expire in 2026. The Cooperative's share
of the estimated decommissioning cost is approximately $35 million. These costs are currently
being recovered by NHEC through the Sellback Contract with PSNH. The Cooperative con-
tributes its share of the costs of decommissioning to an external trust fund. The Cooperative's
share of the decommissioning trust fund balance and the accumulated provision for decommis-
sioning were $507,000 and $366,000 at December 31, 1994 and 1993, respectively. The
Cooperative is scheduled to make payments ranging from $100,000 to $416,000 per year,
through the year 2026, to the Seabrook Decommissioning Fund. These contributions will equal
approximately $8,000,000 which, with fund earnings, are scheduled to be sufficient to cover
estimated decommissioning costs. These amounts are subject to review and revision semian-
nually.

The Cooperative s proportionate share of the direct expenses of Seabrook are included in operat-
ing expenses in the statements of operations. The Cooperative's share in the assets and liabilities
of Seabrook at December 31, 1994 and 1993, is as follows:

1994 1993
(000s) (000s)
Nuclear plant $105,905 $106,167
Transmission plant 1,491 1,481
Distribution plant 152 152
General plant 1,460 1,413
Construction work-in-progress 176 407
Accumulated depreciation and amortization (12.487) (10.025)
Net utility plant in service 96,697 99,595
Other current and accrued assets 5,254 4,013
Deferred debits and other assets ___985 _2.768
Total assets $102936  $106376
Current and accrued liabilities $ 1,003 $ 932
Long-term obligations 128 131
Deferred credits . | ekl
Total liabilities and credits $_1.224 $. 1184
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NEW HAMPSHIRE ELECTRIC COOPERATIVE, INC.
Notes to Financial Statements

December 31, 1994 and 1993

3. Utility Plant - Nuclear (Concluded)
Nuclear Liahility I

The Price-Anderson Act (the Act), a federal statute amended in 1988 to extend to the year 2002,

limits the public liability of a licensee on a nuclear plant for a nuclear incident to approximately
$9 billion.

Seabrook provides the Joint Owners with a primary layer of insurance in the amount of $200
million maintained with private insurance companies. Secondary coverage of up to $8.3 billion
is provided by a retrospective assessment of up to $75.5 million per incident levied on each of
the licensed operating nuclear units in the United States, subject to 2 $10 million maximum
assessment per unit in any year. Additionally, if the sum of all public utility claims and legal
costs arising from any nuclear accident exceeds the maximum amount of financial protection,
each licensee can be assessed an additional 5% (up to $3.8 million) of the maximum retrospec-
tive assessment. There is no limit on the number of incidents for which a licensee could be
assessed these sums.

The Joint Owners are insured, through policies purchased from the Nuclear Electric Insurance
Limited (NEIL), for the cost of repair, replacement, decontamination or decommissioning of the
plant resulting from insured occurrences. The Joint Owners are subject to maximum potential
assessments against Seabrook, with respect to losses arising during current policy years, of
approximately $23.3 million for excess property damage, decontamination and decommissioning.
All companies insured with NFIL are subject to retroactive assessments if losses exceed the
financial resources available to NEIL.

Insurance has been purchased from American Nuclear Insurers/Mutual Atomic Energy Liability
Underwriters aggregating $200 million on an industry basis for coverage of worker claims. All
participating reactors insured under this coverage are subject to retroactive assessments of $3.1
million per reactor.

4. Investment in Associated Organization

Investments in associated organizations, carried at cost, at December 31, 1994 and 1993, consist
of the following:

1994 1993
(000s) (000s)
Capital term certificates - CFC $1,903 $1,903
Patronage capital credits - CFC 02 —_—

Total $1.963 $1.903




NEW HAMPSHIRE ELECTRIC COOPERATIVE, INC.
Notes to Financial Statements

December 31, 1994 and 1993

5. Deferred Debits and Other Assets

Deferred debits and other assets at December 31, 1994 and 1993, were as follows:

1994 1993
(000s) (000s)
Deferred debits
Deferred regulatory asset - Woodstock substation $ 387 $ 417
Deferred power costs 1,952 -
Seabrook prefunding 593 930
Seabrook - other 392 271
Demand side management 235 -
Other assets
PSNH receivable 33,611 28,143
Nuclear fuel - Seabrook 1,214 1,460
Nonoperating property 100 108
Other —d2 .
Total $38736  S3LJ68

6. Long-Term Obligations

As of December 31, 1994 and 1993, long-term obligations were as follows:

1994 1993
(000s) (000s)
9.3% notes payable to the Rural Utilities Service (RUS) (Note A),
payable in monthly installments of $625,000 of interest only
through December 1995, monthly installments of $955,917,
including interest commencing January 1996, through
December 2022 $110,317 * $107,692
2.0% note payable to RUS, payable in monthly installments of
$62,031, including interest, through December 2012 11,288 11,758
5.0% note payable to RUS, payable in monthly instaliments of
$389,724, including interest, through December 2012 55,593 57,289
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NEW HAMPSHIRE ELECTRIC COOPERATIVE, INC.

Notes to Financial Statements

December 31, 1994 and 1993

6. Long-Term Obligations (Continued)

9.3% note payable to RUS, payable in monthly installments of
$200,245 of interest only through December 1995, monthly
installments of $248,545, including interest, commencing
January 1996, through December 2022

9.3% note payable to RUS (deferred note), payable in monthly
installments of $980,917, including interest starting in
August 1997, through July 2000

7.0% note payable to CFC (Note 1), payable in monthly install-
ments of $2,629, including interest, through December 2012

9.5% note payable to CFC (Note 2), payable in monthly install-
ments of $19,657, including interest, through Deccmber 2012

9.75% note payable to CFC (Note 3), payable in monthly install-
ments of $46,632, including interest, through December 2012

6.55% note payable to CFC (Note 4), payable in monthly install-
ments of $7,881, including interest, through December 2012

Total RUS and CFC

PSNH Note
Other long-term obligations

Total obligations
Less current portion

Total long-term obligations

1994 1993
(000s) (000s)
$ 28,721 $ 28,923

24,175 22,036
323 331
2,034 2,072
4,748 4,833
~1.001 —1.026
238,200 235,960
5,930 5,517
277 341
244,407 241,818
~{2.961) 2.817)
$241.44¢ $232.001

The Plan provides for accrued interest on RUS Note A and deferred note, and the PSNH note
to be added to the principal balance. Accrued interest added to principal totalled $5,178,000 in

1994 and $8,148,000 in 1993.

The mortgage agreements provide that ail outstanding obligations to RUS and CFC are collater-
alized by substantially all assets and the rents, income, revenues, proceeds and benefits derived,

received or had for any and all such assets.
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NEW HAMPSHIRE ELECTRIC COOPERATIVE, INC.
Notes to Financial Statements

December 31, 1994 and 1993

6. Lone-Term Obligations (Continued)

The Cooperative must also comply with certain covenants which include restrictions on the
Cooperative's ability to borrow additional monies, enter wato specified transactions or to pay
dividends or distribute capital without first secking the mortgagees' approval. Additional cove-
nants address insurance coverage, the sale of assets and other nonfinancial matters.

CFC has made a commitment to the Cooperative for a $10 million line of credit through
December 31, 2023. Borrowing under the line of credit was $3 million in 1994 and none in
1993. CFC also made a commitment to the Cooperative for a work plan loan of approximately
$12.2 million to finance future plant additions. There were no borrowings under this commit-
ment in 1994 and 1993,

CFC Mortgage Notes 2, 3, and 4 are subject to repricing every seven years, the first such
repricing for each loan occurring in 1997, 1998, and 1994, respectively. During 1994, CFC
Mortgage Note 4 was repriced from 8.75% t0 6.55%.

The PSNH note began accruing interest at the rate of 7.5% per annum starting on December 1,
1993. Interest and principal will be payable as follows:

a. Annually through 2003, payments vill be deemed made on the note in the amount of one
cent for every kilowatt hour delivered by PSNH to NHEC under the amended wholesale
power contract in excess of forecasted deliveries (deliveries credit); and

. Any balance of interest and principal remaining unpaid on January 1, 2002, shall mature on
October 31, 2006, and shall be payable by NHEC over the balance of the term of the note
in equal monthly installments, adjusted for any payments in (a) above paid in 2002 and
2003, in an amount sufficient to pay such balance, and interest thereon on October 31, 2006.

A deliveries credit of $16,834 was realized in 1993; however, no deliveries credit was realized
in 1994,

Under generally accepted accounting principles for entities in reorganization under the Bankrupt-
¢y Code, NHEC was required to restate its debt at its fair value on the effective date. Under the
reorganization plan, the Cooperative may refinance existing debt without penalty and the prin-
cipal balance of long-term debt, restated in the Plan, was considered to approximate the fair
value at the effective date.




NEW HAMPSHIRE ELECTRIC COOPERATIVE, INC.
Notes to Financial Statements

December 31, 1994 and 1993

6. Long-Term Obligations (Concluded)

In addition io the five RUS notes detailed above, the Plan provided a $41.6 million contingent
note. The Cooperative is obligated to principal and interest payments only to the extent that the
Cooperative experiences load growth in excess of forecasted load growth, accumulates cash
above a specified amount, recovers litigation proceeds, or otherwise as provided under the
mortgage. The Cooperative did not realize any of those conditions, therefore, no payments were
made in 1994 and 1993. Future payments to RUS under the terms of the contingent note are not
expected under normal operating conditions. Interest accrues at a rate of 9.3% per annum,
commencing January 1, 1993, and totalled approximately $4,225,000 at December 31, 1994,
Interest accrual will cease on May 1, 2023. Any outstanding balance at May 1, 2023, will be
subject to annual forgiveness in amounts not to exceed $10 million or NHEC may pay, on
May 1, 2023, or each May 1 thereafter, a termination fee of $100,000 to have the note reduced
to zero. Under the terms of the Plan, as long as the contingent note plus accrued interest
remains unpaid, NHEC cannot apply for or receive any RUS direct or insured loans or any RUS
loan guarantees.

Principal payments to be made on long-term obligations are as follows:

(000s)

$ 2,961
4,139
6,497
14,278
15,516

201,016

$244.407

PSNH's payments commencing in July 1997 regarding deferred obligation to NHEC in accor-
dance with the contract coincide with the increased debt payments related to NHEC's Seabrook
ownership.




NEW HAMPSHIRE ELECTRIC COOPERATIVE, INC.
Notes to Financial Statements

December 31, 1994 and 1993

7. Patropage Equities
At December 31, 1994 and 1993, patronage capital consisted of:
1994 1993
(000s) (W0Js)
Assigned $10,072 $10,072
Unassigned 3.236 2.236
$13.308 $13.308

8. Lopg-Term Power Supply and Sale Agreements

The Cooperative has traditionally been a distribution cooperative purchasing power at wholesale
to distribute to its retail customers. In 1981, in connection with its acquisition of a 2.17391%
interest in the Seabrook nuclear facility, NHEC updated a partial requirements service arrange-
ment with PSNH and entered into a Sellback Contract (Sellback) which, for a period of ten
years, required PSNH to buy, at NHEC's cost, any part of NHEC's Seabrook capacity and
energy determined to be in excess of NHEC's needs.

Pursuant to contracts agreed to under the Plan, PSNH will provide NHEC wholesale power at
the so-called "Muni Rate" (the wholesale power rates established pursuani to the settlement
among PSNH and certain municipal electric utilities approved by the FERC) through
November 1, 2006, and continuing thereafter unless five years notice of termination has been
provided by either party. NHEC has an exclusive option to extend the contract term until
November 1, 2011, upon notice to PSNH by November 1, 2001.

PSNH will purchase power resulting from NHEC's Seabrook interest pursuant to a modified
Sellback. The Sellback terms call for PSNH to purchase the entire amount of NHEC's Seabrook
capacity and energy and to pay all NHEC's Seabrook and associated transmission costs, without
regard to Seabrook's operating status, for the ten-year period which began on July 1, 1990. For
purposes of the rates paid to the Cooperative by PSNH under the agreement, NHEC's initial
cost of Seabrook was established at $126 million by order of the NHPUC. The initial cost was
again reduced by depreciation and increased by capital additions. The initial cost was further
reduced on the effective date by $17 million pursuant to the modified Sellback. The terms of
payment also provide for phase-in of Sellback rates through a graduated deferral of costs in the
first five years commencing July 1, 1990, recovered with interest during the last three years.
The Cooperative deferred approximately $5,054,000 and $6,594,000 in costs during 1994 and
1993, respectively, for a cumulative deferred balance of approximately $33,611,000 at
December 31, 1994, and $28,143,000 at December 31, 1993. Interest on the deferred balance
is accrued at 9.3%.
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NEW HAMPSHIRE ELECTRIC COOPERATIVE, INC.

Notes to Financial Statements

Decemnber 31, 1994 and 1993

8. Long-Term Power Supply and Sale Agreements (Concluded)

As part of the settlement between the Cooperative and PSNH, the Cooperative compensated
PSNH for its pre-bankruptcy claim resulting from the excess of NHEC's unpaid bills from
PSNH over PSNH 's unpaid charges from NHEC under the Sellback (recomputed in accordance
with the phase-in term discussed above). This compensation is in the form of a promissory note
issued to PSNH on December 1, 1993, in the principal amount of $5.5 million (see Note 6).
Additionally, a $3 million cash payment was made to PSNH on December 1, 1993. In Docket
No. 92-009 issued on October 5, 1992, the NHPUC authorized a 12-month energy surcharge
to recoup the $3 million due to PSNH. In accordance with the provisions of Statement of
Financial Accounting Standards No. 71, "Accounting for the Effects of Certain Types of Regu-
lation, " the Cooperative accrued the $3 million due to PSNH over the same period the revenues
were collected from members. This resulted in a recording of a $2,250,000 deferred debit at
December 31, 1992, that was fully amortized during 1993.

In addition, capacity and energy are purchased on a wholesale customer basis under contracts
from four other suppliers.

9. Deferred Credits
Deferred credits at December 31, 1994 and 1993, were as follows:
1994 1993
(000s) (000s)
Deferred fuel and purchased energy costs $- $344
Seabrook 93 120
Other $23 $464

10. Reorganization Items

Because the reorganization of the Cooperative was completed in 1993, thers were no costs
incurred during 1994. Reorganization items consisted of the following for the year ended
December 31, 1993:

(000s)
Interest income $ 307
Professional fees (1,023)
Severance agreements 170
Impairment in the value of Seabrook investment (160)
Other (162)

$.(868)
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NEW HAMPSHIRE ELECTRIC COOPERATIVE, INC.
Notes to Financial Statements

December 31, 1994 and 1993

. Pensi { 4010K) Savines P

Substantially all of the employees of the Cooperative participate in the National Rural Electric
Cooperative Association (NRECA) Retirement and Security Program, a multiemployer, defined
benefit pension plan. The Cooperative funds accrued pension costs on an annual basis. Since
July 1, 1987, a moratorium on payments for normal and past service cost contributions has
been imposed because the Pension Plan has reached funding limitations. The moratorium was
lifted during 1994. The Cooperative made one annual payment for past service costs and two
monthly payments for future service costs. Pension costs totalled $288,000 for December 31,
1994, and zero for December 31, 1993. The moratorium is scheduled to be reinstated in April
of 1995.

The Cooperative has established a tax qualified retirement plan for the benefit of its employees
and their beneficiaries. The Cooperative's contribution ranges from 1.4% - 2.0% of arnual
base pay; bonuses and overtime are excluded. The Cooperative's contribution totalled $89,400
and $73,000 for 1994 and 1993, respectively.

The Plan provided for the severance of several senior management personnel. Severance agree-
ments were entered into with these individuals and the Cooperative made payments under the
agreements totalling approximately $114,000 and $70,000 in 1994 and 1993, respectively.
Payments under these agreements were completed in 1994,

The Cooperative is involved in various legal proceedings incidental to the conduct ¢f its normal
business operations. In the opinion of management, these proceedings will not hav a material
adverse impact on the financial condition of the Cooperative.




